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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the 29th Annual General Meeting of the members of Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited will be held on 
Monday, 23rd September 2024 through Video Conferencing(‘VC’) / Other Audio-Visual Means (‘OAVM’) at 10.00 a.m. to transact the 

following business(es): 

 
Ordinary Business: 

Item No. 1: Adoption of financial Statements 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024 including 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended on 

that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

Item No. 2: Re-Appointment of Mr. Ramesh Chandar Chawla as a director liable to retire by rotation 

To Re-appoint Mr. Ramesh Chandar Chawla, as Director of the Company, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment. 

Item No. 3: Ratification of appointment of statutory auditors 

 
To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (“Rules”) (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), 
the Company hereby ratifies the appointment of M/s Haribhakti & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 103523W/W100048), 
as Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the next AGM of the 
Company to be held in the year 2025.” 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 

 

Item No. 4: AUTHORITY TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO SELL/LEASE OR OTHERWISE DISPOSE OFF PART OF THE 
UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special Resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED THAT, Pursuant to the provisions of section 180(1(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules made 
thereunder, and any other applicable provisions, including any modification(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in 
force, subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the company and subject to such other approvals, 
sanctions, consents and permissions as may be necessary to be obtained, the consent of the members of the company be and is 
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the company to sell lease or otherwise dispose of the whole of the land, building, plant 
and Machinery, Office equipment, furniture and Computer installations,  of its Tubes division of the Company  to M/s S S Tyres and 
Tubes Private Limited (PAN No. ABNCS9657A), at such consideration, in such manner and on such terms and conditions as may be  
deemed appropriate and decided by the Board, with the power to the Board to finalize and execute all the required documents, 
memoranda, deeds of assignment/conveyance and any other incidental documents with such modifications as may be required from 
time to time. 
 
“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to execute any documents, deeds or writings as may be 
necessary to be executed in relation to the transfer and vesting of the whole of land and Building of the Company and to make 
applications to the regulatory and governmental authorities for the purpose of obtaining all approvals and sanctions as required to be 
obtained by the company in this regard."  
 
“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and deeds as may be necessary, proper, desirable 
and/or expedient to give effect to this resolution, to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in regard to such 
sale/disposal and transfer of the Land and Building as they may in their absolute discretion deem fit and as may be necessary for the 
completion of the transaction as aforesaid in the best interest of the company." 
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Item No.5: Ratification of The Remuneration of the Cost Auditor for 2023-24 And 2024-25.  
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolutions as an Ordinary Resolution:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Companies (Cost 

Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration of M/s. Diwanji & Co., Cost 

Accountants (Firm Registration Number:103523W/W100048), Cost Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 as appointed by 

the Board of Directors at a remuneration of Rs. 50,000 (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) p.a., to be paid to M/s. Diwanji & Co. (Firm Registration 

Number:103523W/W100048), Cost Accountants be and is hereby confirmed and ratified by the members.  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Companies (Cost 

Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration of M/s. Diwanji & Co., Cost 

Accountants (Firm Registration Number:103523W/W100048), Cost Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 as appointed by 

the Board of Directors at a remuneration of Rs. 75,000 (Rupees Seventy-Five Thousand only) p.a., to be paid to M/s. Diwanji & Co. (Firm 

Registration Number:103523W/W100048), Cost Accountants be and is hereby confirmed and ratified by the members of the company. 
 

 
Place: Halol  By order of the Board of Directors 
Date: 29th August 2024 For Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited 

 

 

 

Robin Chawla 

DIN-10277507 
Director & CFO   

Registered Office: 

1201, 1202, 1203, GIDC Halol, 

Panchmahal – 389350. 

CIN: L25112GJ1995PLC086579 

Website: www.innovativetyres.com 

E-mail: investors@innovativetyres.co.in 

Tel: 02676 -220621 

 
NOTES:  

1. Pursuant to the General Circular nos. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, 

02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022, 10/2022 dated December 28, 

2022, 09/2023 dated 25th September 2023 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) and Circular no. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P /2021/11, SEBI/ HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/ 2022/ 62, and 

SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 issued by The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) (hereinafter referred to as 

“the Circulars”), the Companies are allowed to hold AGM through video conference (“VC”) or other audio visual means (“OAVM”), 

without the physical presence of members at a common venue and also allowed to send notice and annual report through 

electronic mode only. Hence, in compliance with the aforesaid Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC. The 

deemed venue for AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company. 

 

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated 12
th
 May, 2020, Circular dated 15thJanuary, 2021, 

SEBI Circular dated 13th May, 2022, SEBI Circular dated 5th January 2023 (hereinafter referred to as “SEBI Circulars”), the 

notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email 

addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report will also be 

available on the Company’s website www.innovativetyres.com, website of National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www. 

nseindia.com. 

2. Since this AGM is being held through VC/ OAVM, pursuant to MCA Circulars, physical attendance of the Members has 
been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM. 
Hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map are not annexed to this Notice. 

http://www.innovativetyres.com/
mailto:investors@innovativetyres.co.in
http://www.innovativetyres.com/
http://www/


Annual Report 2023-24 3 

 

 

3. Participation of members through VC/ OAVM will be reckoned for the purpose of quorum for the AGM as per Section 103 of the 
Act. 

4. Facility of joining the AGM through VC / OAVM shall open 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 

commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM 

through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include 

large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first 

come first served basis. 

5. Members of the Company under the category of Institutional Investors are encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM through VC 

/ OAVM. Corporate members intending to authorize their representatives to participate and vote at the meeting, are requested to 

send a certified copy of the Board Resolution / authorization letter to the Company or upload on the VC / OAVM portal / e-

voting portal. 

6. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the Act, and 

the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be 

available electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM, based on the request being received on 

investors@innovativetyres.co.in. 

7. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without any fee by the members from 

the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an 

email to investors@ innovativetyres.co.in 

8. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from 11th September, 2024 to 23rd September 
2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of the Twenty-Ninth AGM of the Company. 

9. Members are requested to: 

i) Register their correct email ID and correct Bank Account details: 

In case the shareholder’s email ID is already registered with the Company/its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent “RTA”/ 

Depositories, log in details for e-voting are being sent on the registered email address. 

In case the shareholder has not registered his/her/their email address with the Company/its RTA/Depositories and or not 

updated the Bank Account mandate for receipt of dividend, the following instructions to be followed: 

a) In the case of Shares held in physical mode: The shareholder may please email to RTA at rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 

or the Company at investors@innovativetyres.co.in. 

b) In the case of Shares held in Demat mode: The shareholder may please contact the Depository Participant (“DP”) and 

register the email address and bank account details in the demat account as per the process followed and advised 

by the DP. 

ii) Intimate the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. for consolidation into a single folio Members, 

if they have shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same order of names. 

iii) Convert their holdings in dematerialized form to eliminate risks associated with physical shares and better 

management of the securities. Members can write to the company’s registrar and share transfer agent in this regard. 

iv) Members may avail themselves of the facility of nomination in terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 by nominating 

in the prescribed form a person to whom their shares in the Company shall vest in the event of their death. Members 

holding shares in physical form may obtain the Nomination forms from the Company’s Registrar and Share  Transfer Agent 

and Members holding shares in electronic form may obtain the Nomination forms from their respective Depository 

Participant(s). 

10. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names 

as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote. 

11. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every 

participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their 

Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts(s). Members holding shares in physical form 

can submit their PAN details to M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. at C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai 400 

083. 

mailto:investors@innovativetyres.co.in
mailto:rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
mailto:investors@innovativetyres.co.in
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12. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice can be obtained for inspection by sending E-mail to Company on 

investors@innovativetyres.co.in. Electronic copies of necessary statutory registers and auditors’ report/certificates will be 

available for inspection by the members at the time of AGM. 

13. Members desiring any information relating to the Accounts are requested to address their queries to the Registered Office of the 

Company at least seven days before the date of the AGM, to enable the management to keep the information ready. 

14. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any change 

in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) 

dormant long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings 

should be verified. 

15. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred only in 

dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of 

securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, 

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members 

can contact the Company or Link Intime India Private Limited, Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent for assistance in this 

regard. 

16. Consolidation of Shares under one folio The Company would urge shareholders holding shares of the Company under 

different folios to consolidate the shares under one folio. This would substantially reduce paperwork and transaction costs and 

benefit the shareholders and the Company. Shareholders can do so by writing to the Registrar with details on folio numbers, 

order of names, shares held under each folio, and the folio under which all shareholding should be consolidated. Share 

certificates need not be sent. 

 

17. The Members who hold shares in physical mode and have not registered their e-mail address may register their email ids with the 

Company / Registrar and Transfer Agent (Link Intime India Private Limited) to enable the Company to send Notices of General 

meeting/Postal Ballot, Annual Report and other shareholders communication by electronic mode. 

Members are requested to support this Green Initiative by registering/updating their e-mail addresses, with the Depository 

Participant (in case of Shares held in dematerialized form) or with Registrar and Share Transfer Agents. (in case of Shares held 

in physical form). 

18. Voting through electronic means (Remote E-voting): 

i) In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 

2015 and Regulation 44 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued 

by the institute of Company Secretaries of India, the Company is pleased to provide to its Members the facil ity to exercise 

their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 29th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic 

means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the Members 

using an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by Link 

Intime India Private Limited (LIIPL). 

ii) The remote e-voting period commences on Friday, 20th day of September, 2024 (9:00 a.m. IST) and ends on Sunday, 22nd 
day of September, 2024 (5:00 p.m. IST). During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical 
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of Friday, 13th day of September 2024 may cast their vote 
electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by LIIPL e-voting platform for voting thereafter. 

iii) The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of Beneficial Owners as on Friday, 13th day of 

September, 2024, being the cut-off date, are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in this Notice. 

iv) The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not been 

titled to cast their vote again. 

v) The facility for e-voting at the AGM will be available and the Members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by 

remote e-Voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through e-voting. 

vi) The Company has appointed Mrs. Swati Bhatt, Proprietor of M/s. Swati Bhatt & Co., Practising Company Secretaries as 

Scrutinizer, to scrutinize the entire e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

vii) The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the annual general meeting, would first unblock the 

e-voting at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two (2) 
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witnesses not in the employment of the company and make within a period not exceeding two (2) days from the conclusion 

of the meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any and submit forth with 

to the Chairman of the Company or a person authorized by him in writing who shall countersign the same. 

viii)  The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website 

https://www.innovativetyres.com/ and on the website of LIIPL immediately after the result is declared. The Company shall 

simultaneously forward the results to National Stock Exchange (“NSE”), where the shares of the Company are listed. 

ix) The Resolution shall be deemed to be passed on the date of AGM i.e. 23rd day of September, 2024, subject to receipt of 
sufficient votes. 

 
 

http://www.innovativetyres.com/
http://www.innovativetyres.com/


1 2 3 NOTICE STATUTORY REPORTS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

6 INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LIMITED 

 

 

Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders post change in the Login mechanism for Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode, pursuant to SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020: 

Pursuant to SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode can vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants only 

post 9th June, 2021. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts to access e-Voting facility. Login 

method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode/ physical mode is given below: 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode/ physical mode is given below: 

 
Type of shareholders Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL 

 If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. 
Open 
web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial 

Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You 

will have to enter your User ID and Password. 

 After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-

Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

 If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices. nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ Ideas Direct Reg. jsp 

 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www. evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 

home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. 

your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification 

Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

 Existing user of who have opted for Easy / Easiest, they can login through their user id and 
password. 
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL 

for users to login to Easy / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 

www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

 After successful login of Easi / Easiest the user will be also able to see the E Voting Menu. The 

Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL, KARVY, LINK NTIME, CDSL. 

Click on e-Voting service provider name to cast your vote. 

 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/ myeasi./Registration/EasiRegistration 

 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat Account Number 

and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user 

by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After 

successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESP where the E Voting 

is in progress. 
Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat mode) & login 
through their depository 
participants 

 You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 

 Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you 

will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you 

can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and 

you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
http://www/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Type of shareholders Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
Physical mode & evoting 
service Provider is 
LINKINTIME. 

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

 Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details: - 

A. User ID: Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide 

Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company. 

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who 

have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall 

use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable. 

C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded 

with your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format) 

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded 

with your DP/Company. 

 Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and 

‘D’, shall provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above 

 Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, 

at least one special Character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet 

and at least one capital letter). 

 Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated). 

2. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 

3. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on ‘Submit’. 

4. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ icon. 

5. E-voting page will appear. 

6. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / 

Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link). 

7. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box 

will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click 

on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote. 

Institutional shareholders: 

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on the e-voting system 

of LIIPL at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’. They are also 

required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution /authority letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested 

specimen signature of the duly authorised representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’ login for 

the Scrutinizer to verify the same. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode & evoting service Provider is LINKINTIME, have forgotten the 
password: 

o Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password?’ 

o Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and Click on ‘Submit’. 

 In case shareholders/ members is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address. 

 Shareholders/ members can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the particulars of the 

Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned above. 

 The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character (@! #$&*), at least one numeral, 

at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter. 

 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL have forgotten the password: 

 Shareholders/ members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 

Password option available at abovementioned depository/ depository participants’ website. 

 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 

password confidential. 

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
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 For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the resolutions 

contained in this Notice. 

 During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on the 

resolution(s) for a particular “Event”. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 

In case shareholders/ members holding securities in demat mode have any technical issues related to login through Depository 

i.e. NSDL/ CDSL, they may contact the respective helpdesk given below: 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending 

a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 

30 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a 

request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or 22-

23058542-43. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders & evoting service Provider is 
LINKINTIME 

In case shareholders/ members holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders have any queries regarding e -voting, 

they may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) and InstaVote e-Voting manual available at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, 

under Help section or send an email to enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 –4918 6000. 

Process and manner for attending the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet: 

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in 

> Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details: - 

A. Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16-digit Demat Account No. or Folio No 

 Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

 Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 
Digit Client ID 

 Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registered with the Company 

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated their PAN with the 

Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable. 

C. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number. 

D. Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP/Company. 

> Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the meeting). 

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet: 

1. Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request 3 days in advance with the company 

mentioning their name, demat account no./folio no., email id, mobile no. at investors@innovativetyres.co.in 

2. Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the client. 

3. Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting. 

4. Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the meeting. 

5. Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on video mode and audio of your 
device. 

NOTE: Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the name and 

serial number for speaking. 

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet: 

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting, shareholders/ members who have not 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:enotices@linkintime.co.in
mailto:investors@innovativetyres.co.in
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exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under: 

1. On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote” 

2. Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ registered email Id) received 

during registration for InstaMEET and click on ‘Submit’. 

3. After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ Against” for voting. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares (which represents no. 

of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against’. 

5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click on “Save”. A confirmation 

box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly 

modify your vote. 

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote subsequently. 

 

Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and have not casted their 

vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting 

facility during the meeting. Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will 

be eligible to attend/ participate in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again 

during the meeting. 

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through broadband for better 
experience. 

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to avoid any disturbance 

during the meeting. 

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting via Mobile 

Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN 

connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email to instameet@linkintime.co.in or 

contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175. 

Guidelines to attend the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.: InstaMEET 

For a smooth experience of viewing the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. InstaMEET, shareholders/ members who 

are registered as speakers for the event are requested to download and install the Webex application in advance by following 

the instructions as under: 

a) Please download and install the Webex application by clicking on the link https://www.webex.com/downloads.html/ 

or 

b) If you do not want to download and install the Webex application, you may join the meeting by following the process mentioned 

as under: Step 1: Enter your First Name, Last Name and Email ID and click on Join Now. 

1 (A): If you have already installed the Webex application on your device, join the meeting by clicking on Join Now 

1 (B): If Webex application is not installed, a new page will appear giving you an option to either Add Webex to chrome or Run a 

temporary application. 

Click on Run a temporary application, an exe file will be downloaded. Click on this exe file to run the application and join the 

meeting by clicking on Join Now. 

General Guidelines for Shareholders: 

I. A Member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-Voting but shall not be allowed 

to vote again at the AGM. 

II. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of Members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories 

as on the cut-off date, i.e., 13th day of September, 2024, only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-Voting as well as e-

Voting at the AGM. 

Institutional Shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to e-Voting system 

of LIIPL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as ‘Custodian/ Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’. They are also 

mailto:instameet@linkintime.co.in
https://www.webex.com/downloads.html/
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required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution / authority letter / power of attorney, etc., together with 

attested specimen signature of the duly authorized representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate 

Body’ login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same. 

III. During the voting period, Shareholders can login any number of time till they have voted on the resolution(s) for a particular “Event”. 

IV. Shareholders holding multiple folios / demat account shall choose the voting process separately for each of the folios / demat 
account. 

V. In case the Shareholders have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting, please refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) 

and Instavote e-Voting manual available at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, under Help section or write an email to 

enotices@linkintime.co.in or Call us: - Tel: +91 (022) – 4918 6000. 

VI. The Chairman shall, during the AGM / at the end of discussion / after every business item for the resolutions on which voting is 

to be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by way of e-Voting system for the purpose of conducting a poll for all 

those Members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-Voting facility. 

VII. The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman or to any other person authorized by the Chairman after the 

completion of the scrutiny of the e-Voting (votes cast during the AGM and votes casted through remote e-Voting), not later 

than 2 working days from the conclusion of the AGM. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report shall be 

communicated to NSE and RTA and will also be displayed on the Company’s website at www.innovativetyres.com and on the 

RTA’s website at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in. 

VIII. The voting results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company 

www.innovativetyres. com immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in 

writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the National Stock Exchange. 

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
mailto:enotices@linkintime.co.in
http://www.innovativetyres.com/
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PERSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

 

Item No.3 

M/s Haribhakti & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 103523W/W100048), were re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the 

Company at the previous Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on 29th December 2023, to hold the office till the conclusion of 

32nd AGM. The said appointment was the Second year in their Second term of five years. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors are appointed for a term of 5 consecutive years. Therefore, it is proposed to ratify the appointment 

of M/s Haribhakti & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 103523W/W100048), as Statutory Auditors of the Company. 

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution at Item No. 3 of this Notice for your approval. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thereof has any concern or interest, financial or otherwise in the resolution at 

Item No. 3 of this Notice. 

 

Item No 4 

The members of the company are requested to note that as per section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), the Board of Directors 
of a company ("the Board") can exercise the power to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the whole or substantially the whole  of any 
undertaking(s) of the company, only with the prior approval of the members of the company by way of a special resolution. As per Explanation 
(1) & (ii) of section 180(1)(a) of the Act: 

i."undertaking" means an undertaking in which the company's investment exceeds 20% of its net worth as per the audited balance 
sheet of the preceding financial year or an undertaking which generates 20% of the total income of the company during the previous 
financial year  

ii."Substantially the whole of the undertaking" in any financial year means 20% or more of the value of the undertaking as per the audited 
balance sheet of the preceding financial year.  

Your Company has identified the Land and Building as 'substantial' in terms of section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and therefore 
requires member’s approval by way of "Special Resolution for disposal of the said land and building.  

Consequent upon high cost of production, reduced operations and poor marketing in last couple of months, the Board is of the view that the 
progress of the company is lying with its Tyre plant only or other diversified product and therefore, it will be better for the company to sell or 
otherwise dispose of all the assets of the Tubes division including land, Building, Plant and machineries, furniture, office equipment and computer 
installation.  

Your company had invited bids from several parties to buy the assets of the Company, and M/s S S Tyres and Tubes Private Limited (PAN No. 
ABNCS9657A) has shown the interest in buying the said property viz. land and building and plant and machineries, furniture, o ffice equipment 
and computer installation of the Tubes division and bid the highest amount to buy it. 

The Board at its meeting held on 29th August 2024 accorded its approval to dispose of all the assets of the Tube Division of the Company 
including land Building, Plant, machineries etc. 

The net proceeds from the sale of the assets will be utilized to repay the existing loans from Promoters and other liabilities.  

None of the Directors and/or their respective relatives are interested financially or otherwise in the resolution set out at item no. 4 of the 
accompanying notice.  

The Board re-commends the resolution set out at item no. 4 for approval of the members by means of a special resolution. 

 

Item No 5 

The Audit Committee of the Company at their meeting held on March 06, 2024 has recommended to the Board of Directors, for appointment and 
fixing of remuneration of M/s. Diwanji & Co., Cost Accountants, for audit of cost records of manufacturing units of the Company for the financial 
year 2023-24 and also for the financial year 2024-25. The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on March 06, 2024 has 
appointed and fixed their remuneration as Cost Auditors of the Company subject to ratification by the members of the Company. In accordance 
with the provisions of Section 148, other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under, the remuneration 
payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the members of the Company. Therefore, the Board of Directors of the Company proposes 
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resolution as set out in Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval of Members of the Company.  

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested in the aforesaid 
resolution. 

The Board re-commends the resolution set out at item no. 5 for approval of the members by means of an Ordinary resolution. 

 

Annexure A 

Details, pursuant to Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard- 2 on “General Meetings “issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India, in respect of Director seeking re-appointment at this AGM: 

 
Particulars  Mr. Ramesh Chander Chawla (DIN- 08303533)  

Date of Appointment  09-08-2023  
Designation  Director  
Age  81 Years  
Qualifications  High School  
Experience (including expertise in specific functional 
area)/Brief Resume  

Importer of Raw Rubber Materials from last 10 years  

Terms and conditions of appointment/re-appointment  Compensation `Rs. Nil per annum.  
Period three years.  

Relationship with other directors or Key Managerial 
Personnel  

Mr. Munish Chawla (Son)  
Mr. Robin Chawla (Grand Son)  

Names of listed entities in which the  
person also holds the directorship and the membership of 
Committees of the Board  

Nil  

Total shares held by him in the company  Nil  

 

 

 
Place: Halol                                                                                                                       By order of the Board of Directors 
Date:   29th August, 2024                                                                                                                           For Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited 
 

 
Registered Office: 

1201, 1202, 1203, GIDC Halol, Robin Chawla 

Panchmahal – 389350. Director & CFO 

CIN: L25112GJ1995PLC086579                             DIN:10277507   

Website: www.innovativetyres.com        

E-mail: investors@innovativetyres.co.in                                                                                                                                                    

Tel: 02676 -220621            

http://www.innovativetyres.com/
mailto:investors@innovativetyres.co.in


Annual Report 2023-24 13 

 

 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 
To, 
The Members 
Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited 

 

Your Board of Directors present the 29th Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 
2024. 

The members are informed that the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench, ordered the Commencement 

of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process vide NCLT order No. C.P (I.B) No. 261/NCLT(AHM)2021, Dated: 28.03.2022 (CIRP 

Process Commencement Date). The NCLT had, pursuant to the Admission Order, appointed an Interim Resolution Professional 

(IRP) for the Corporate Debtor vide its order of even date. In terms of the admission order, inter alia, the management of the 

affairs of the Corporate Debtor was vested with the IRP. Subsequently, the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”) appointed the IRP as 

the Resolution Professional (RP) to manage the day-to-day affairs of the Company. On appointment of the IRP/RP, the powers of 

the Board of Directors of the Company were suspended. 

In accordance with the provisions of the Code, resolution plan in respect of the Company was received by the RP. The CoC of the 

Company, in their meeting held on December 31, 2022 had approved the Resolution Plan submitted by M/s. Ten on Ten Rubtech 

Private Limited (“Successful Resolution Applicants”) which was subsequently submitted to the Hon’ble NCLT in accordance with 

Section 30(6) of the Code. 

The Hon’ble NCLT, Ahmedabad bench, vide its order dated August 09, 2023 approved the Resolution Plan submitted by the 

Successful Resolution Applicant. A new Board was constituted on August 09, 2023 and a new management was put in place. 

The approved Resolution Plan is binding on the Company and its employees, members, creditors, including the Central Government, 

any State Government or any local authority to whom a debt in respect of the payment of dues arising under any law for the time being 

in force, such as authorities to whom statutory dues are owed such as guarantors and other stakeholders involved in the 

Resolution Plan. 

The newly constituted Board of Directors were in office for the period starting from August 09, 2023 till the year ended March 31, 2024. 

During the period of the CIRP i.e. from March 28, 2022 till August 09, 2023, the IRP/RP was in-charge of the affairs of the Operations 

of the Company. The newly constituted Board is submitting this report in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013, and the rules framed thereunder and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements), Regulations 2015. The newly constituted Board is not to be considered responsible to discharge fiduciary duties 

with respect to the oversight on financial and operational health of the Company and performance of the management for the 

period upto 17.08.2023 (Date of Handover by the Resolution Professional) 

 
FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2024 is summarized below: 

(`Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

31st March 
2024 

Year ended 

31st March 
2023 

Revenue from Operations 1417.79 162.44 

Other Income 820.33 24.39 

Total Revenue 2238.12 186.83 

Total expenses 2617.79 6,327.67 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation and extraordinary items           (379.67) (6,140.83) 

Exceptional items 3826.63 - 

Profit /(Loss) before taxation 3446.96 (6,140.83) 

Less: tax expense (including adjusted deferred tax) (2.73) 847.18 

Profit /(Loss) after tax 3449.69 (5,293.65) 

EPS (Basic) 19.17 (29.42) 

EPS (Diluted) 19.17 (29.42) 



2 1 3 NOTICE STATUTORY REPORTS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

14 INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LIMITED 

 

 

STATEMENT OF COMPANIES AFFAIRS 

During the year under review the total turnover from operations was Rs.`1417.79 lakhs as against the last year’s turnover of ̀  Rs.162.44 

lakhs. The revenue increased due to starting of manufacturing operations after CIRP period. During the year, the company recorded 

a Net profit of ̀ Rs.3449.69 lakhs as against the previous year’s net loss of ̀  Rs.5293.65 lakhs. 

In accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, the Company was admitted to undergo CIRP pursuant to 

the Order of the Hon’ble NCLT, Ahmedabad Bench, on March 28, 2022 and came out of CIRP after order pronounced as on 

August 09, 2023. 

 
DIVIDEND 

Considering the loss during the current financial year, your directors unanimously decided not to propose any dividend for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2024. 

 
TRANSFER TO RESERVE 

During the year under review, the Company has not proposed any amount to be transferred to General Reserve out of Net profits 

of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 

 
SUBSIDIARIES AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Company do not have any subsidiaries. Further in case of consolidation of associate concern, the Company is falling within the 

exemption of AS-23 hence; there is no need to prepare consolidated financial statement for the financial year 2023-24. 

 
LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE 

The Equity Shares of your Company are listed on the EMERGE platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”).  The 

Company had paid Annual Listing fees to the stock exchange for the Financial Year 2024-25. However, in view of Hon’ble NCLT 

Order dated 09-08-2023 read with Order dated 04-06-2024, the extinguishment of shares taking place therefore the trading of 

the equity shares is temporarily suspended w.e.f. 26-06-2024 vide Circular Ref. No: 1062/2024 dated 19-06-2024. 

 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT: 

There have not been any material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company since the close of 

financial year i.e. since 31st March, 2024. 

Pursuant to the Order dated August 09, 2023 and Order dated 04-06-2024 passed by the Hon’ble NCLT, Ahmedabad bench, the 

following events took place; 

(I) Constitution of New Management: The new management has, w.e.f. August 17, 2023 being the effective date, taken 

control of the operations of the Company. 

(ii) Reconstitution of the Board of Directors: Consequent to the NCLT Order dated August 09, 2023, all the Directors as of the date of 

the order were deemed to have vacated/resigned from their office. New Board was re-constituted on August 09, 2023 

consisting of Mr. Munish Chawla, Mr. Robin Chawla and Mr. Ramesh Chander Chawla and simultaneously Woman 

Director Mrs.Roshni Chawla and two Independent Directors Mr.Umesh Ved and Ms.Jasmin Doshi also got appointed 

on 10th November 2023 along with the appointment of Mrs.Shweta Sharma, Company Secretary of the Company. 

(iii) Implementation of Resolution Plan: The Resolution Plan envisages amongst other things, Reduction in the existing Share 

Capital of the Company, Consolidation of the Equity Shares of the Company, fresh issue and allotment of Equity Shares to 

the Successful Resolution Applicant. As per the Resolution plan approved by the Hon’ble NCLT vide order dated 09-08-

2023, there was a mismatch in promoter and public shareholding. In order to correct the same an interlocutory application 

was filed before the Hon’ble NCLT and the order of the same was pronounced on dated 4th June 2024 i.e. after the audit of 

annual accounts of the year under review, the effect of the same was not incorporated except the receipt of share application 

money from the resolution applicant. The interlocutory application approved by the Hon’ble NCLT on 4-6-24 read with original 

order dated 09-08-2023 envisages the cancellation of erstwhile promoter’s equity, reduction of public shareholding and 

allotment of new shares to new promoters. The effect of the same has been given on 26-06-2024 being the record date for 

the above corporate actions. However, the approval for the above corporate action from stock exchange is awaited. 

Therefore, the effect of the said corporate actions by the depositories yet to be given. The quantification of above has been 

given in detail at SHARE CAPITAL CLAUSE in this director’s report.   
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(iv) Constitution of Implementation and Monitoring: As provided for in the approved Resolution Plan the Implementation and 

Monitoring Committee was constituted on August 16, 2023, comprising of three members viz. the erstwhile Resolution 

Professional (re-designated as the Chairperson to the Implementation & Monitoring Committee), one member from Secured 

Creditors and one member from Resolution Applicant. The Company has made full payments to the Operational creditors, 

Financial Creditors, CIRP Cost, Employee dues as per the Resolution plan approved by the Hon’ble NCLT, Ahmedabad 

Bench. 

Consequent to the full payment made and all compliances done the monitoring committee has also taken note of full 

payments made in its concluding meeting held on 8th August 2024.  

No crystalized or contingent Liabilities as on the Resolution Plan approval date shall be payable which has not been 
specifically accepted and provided for in the Resolution Plan. All payment proposed against deemed assumed Liabilities, 
contingent Liabilities, disputed Liabilities and such other liabilities shall be considered as full and final amount payable towards 
such liabilities. No further claims or litigation shall be admissible against the Corporate Debtor or Resolution Applicants for any 
such Liabilities stated herein. No liabilities shall be admissible which has not specifically been assumed under the Resolution 
Plan. Further any liability crystallizing out of the contingent liabilities or disputed legal cases of the Company or any other unknown 
or unclaimed liability pertaining to a transaction or incident dating to a period prior to the Insolvency commencement date or 
during the CIRP which does not find a place in the approved Resolution Plan, shall be deemed to have lapsed/extinguished on 
the approval of the Resolution Plan and the Company shall be deemed to have been duly discharged from all legal liability 
arising from such antecedent claims. Hence no fresh claims shall be entertained by the company in future and all outstanding 
liabilities shall be deemed to be extinguished. 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT: 

During the year, all the risk related to compliance and activity in relation to Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process has 

been managed by Resolution Professional till 09-08-2023 and as soon as the successful Resolution Applicant has 

taken over the company and the new management got appointed all the responsibilities got transferred and within 

short period of time the export has also started. 

The new management of the Company has reviewed the existing risk management policy and laid down defined risk 

management mechanism covering the risk mapping and trend analysis, risk exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation 

process. However, constitution of Risk Management Committee is not applicable as it is applicable to top 500 listed 

companies only. 

 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

In accordance with the Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the annual return of the Company as on 

March 31, 2024 in the prescribed format is available on the Company’s website. The web-link as required under the Act is as 

under: 

LINK:https://www.innovativetyres.com/investor_relations/announcements/innovativedraftAnnualReturnFY2023-24 

 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

In compliance of the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, other applicable provisions of the Act, the Companies 
(Appointment and Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors at their meeting held appointed M/s. Swati 

Bhatt & Co., Practicing Company Secretary, Vadodara as Secretarial Auditor of the company for the F.Y. 2024-25. The Secretarial 
Audit Report of Financial year 2023-24 is attached as an Annexure – 1. 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Your company has incorporated the appropriate standards of corporate governance. Pursuant to Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the company being SME listed company, is not required to 

mandatorily comply with the provisions of certain regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. Hence, company is not filing Corporate Governance report to stock exchange quarterly. However as per 

Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 

company is giving report on corporate governance in Annual Report of the company. Corporate Governance Report is 

as per Annexure – 2. The requisite Certificate has been obtained from M/s. Swati Bhatt & Co., Practicing Company 

Secretary, Vadodara is attached to Corporate Governance Report. 

 

 

 

http://www.innovativetyres.com/investor_relations/announcements/innovativedraftAnnualReturnFY2022-23
http://www.innovativetyres.com/investor_relations/announcements/innovativedraftAnnualReturnFY2022-23
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT: 

As per Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 

the Management Discussion and Analysis Report is attached as Annexure – 3 to this Annual Report. 

 
DISCLOSURE ON DEPOSITS UNDER CHAPTER V 

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the financial year 2023-24 in terms of Chapter V of the 

Companies Act, 2013. However, The Company has filed the Return of Deposits in which there are some amounts taken from 

Directors and from the Banks also. Further, the Company is not having any unpaid or unclaimed deposits at the end of the 

financial year. 

 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM 

Pursuant to the taking over of the operations of the Company by the new management, the Company is putting in place a 

framework for Internal Financial Controls, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of the Company’s operations. 

 
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

The Board of Directors comprises of following directors: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Directors/KMP Designation 

1. Mr. Mukesh Desai Non-Executive Chairman (upto 09-08-2023) 

2. Mr. Keyoor Bakshi Independent Director (upto 09-08-2023) 

3. Dr. Mrs. Kalpana Joshipura Independent Director (upto 09-08-2023) 

4. Mr. Munish Chawla Managing Director (w.e.f. 09-08-2023) 

5. Mr. Robin Chawla Non-executive Director (w.e.f. 09-08-2023) and Director & CFO 
 (w.e.f. 10-11-2023) 

6. Mr. Ramesh Chander Chawla Non-executive Director (w.e.f. 09-08-2023) 

7. Mr. Umesh Ved Independent Director (w.e.f. 10-11-2023) 

8. Ms. Jasmin Doshi Independent Director (w.e.f. 10-11-2023) 

9. Mrs. Roshni Chawla Non-Executive Director (w.e.f. 10-11-2023) 

10. Mrs. Shweta Pankaj Sharma Company Secretary & Compliance Officer (w.e.f. 10-11-2023) 

 

During part of the year the company was under CIRP and during the CIRP period (i.e. between March 28, 2022 till August 09, 

2023), Resolution Professional was entrusted with and responsible for the management of the affairs of the Company. 

 
MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

During the year, the Board met 6 (six) times i. e. on 06 July 2023, August 22, 2023, two number of meetings on 

November 10, 2023, December 04, 2023 and March 06, 2024.  Details of Directors presence in each board meeting 

is mentioned below: 

Name of Directors Number of Meetings attended / Total Meetings held during the F.Y. 2023-24. 

Mr. Mukesh Desai 1/1 

Mr. Keyoor Bakshi 0/1 

Dr. Mrs. Kalpana Joshipura 0/1 

Mr.Munish Chawla 05/05 

Mr.Robin Chawla 05/05 

Mr.Ramesh Chandar Chawla 05/05 

Mrs.Roshni Chawla 04/04 

Mr.Umesh Ved 04/04 

Ms.Jasmin Doshi 04/04 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 
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The members of the company at their Annual General Meeting held on 29th December,2023, have appointed M/s Haribhakti 
& Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 103523W/W100048), as Statutory Auditors of the Company to 
conduct the audit for remaining period of four years in their second term i.e up to 32nd Annual General Meeting ‘subject to the 
ratification at every Annual General Meeting at such remuneration as may be decided by the Board and auditors mutually for 
the Financial year 2023-24 was made in the Annual General Meeting held on 29th December 2023.The Auditor’s Report for 
financial year 2023-24 contains qualification, reservation.  

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 30
th
May 2024, have proposed, subject to approval of 

shareholders, the Ratification of Appointment of M/s Haribhakti & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 

103523W/W100048), as Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting 

up to the conclusion of next Annual General Meeting of the Company.  

 
FRAUD REPORTED BY AUDITOR UNDER SECTION 143(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

There was no instance of fraud reported by the auditor in their report under Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
COST AUDITORS 

The Company has not appointed the Cost Auditor for the Financial year 2022-23. Appointment of M/s.Diwanji & Co., Cost 

Accountants, Vadodara was done in the meeting of the Board held on 06th March 2024, to conduct the Cost Audit for the financial 

year 2023-24 as per Section 148 of Companies Act, 2013. 

There was no Cost Audit Report for the financial year 2022-23 as there was no cost Auditor during Financial Year 2022-23 as there was 

no production activity during the CIRP period. The Report for the Financial year 2023-24 is yet to be received from M/s.Diwanji & Co., Cost 

Accountants, Vadodara.  

 
INTERNAL AUDITOR: 

M/s Khode & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Internal Auditor of the company has submitted their Report for the Financial 

Year 2023-24 and now the firm has been re-appointed as the Internal Auditors of the Company for FY 2024-25 to conduct the 

Internal Audit on the basis of detailed Internal Audit Plan.  

 

 
SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 
 

Board of Directors at their meeting held on dated 4th December 2023 appointed M/s. Swati Bhatt & Co., Practicing Company 

Secretary, Vadodara as Secretarial Auditor to conduct the secretarial audit for the financial year 2023-24. Secretarial Audit 

Report for financial year 2023-24 is attached to this report as Annexure - 1. 

 

Further, Considering the performance of Secretarial Auditor Board of Directors have decided to continue with the same 

secretarial Auditor and re-appointed M/s. Swati Bhatt & Co., Practicing Company Secretary, Vadodara as Secretarial Auditor 

to conduct the secretarial audit for the financial year 2024-25 at their meeting held on 30th May, 2024. 

. 

STATEMENT ON IMPACT OF AUDIT QUALIFICATIONS (FOR AUDIT REPORT WITH MODIFIED OPINION) 

The Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) for financial year 2023-24 is attached to this report as 
Annexure - 5. 

 
BOARD’S COMMENT ON THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

In the Report of the Independent Auditors for the year ended March 31, 2024, forming part of this Annual Report, the Auditors 

have given basis of qualified opinion, emphasis of matter and observations: - 

1) Clause (a) of Basis of Qualified Opinion of Independent Auditor’s Report 

2) Clause (b) of Basis of Qualified Opinion of Independent Auditor’s Report 

3) Clause (a) and (b) of Emphasis of Matter of Independent Auditor’s Report 

4) Clause (i) (a) and (i) (b) of the Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’s Report. 

5) Clause (vi) of the Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’s Report. 
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In relation to the qualifications, emphasis of matters and observations referred above, the point wise submissions are as under: 

1) During the year under review the Company could not cancel Equity shares held by Promoters and reduce equity share 
capital of the public shareholders as per the order of Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad pronounced on 9th August 2023, 
because, there is a difference in Promoter and Pubic shareholding as per Hon’ble NCLT order and Actual shareholding 
as on Date of Honorable NCLT Order (i.e. August 09, 2023). The Company has applied to Hon’ble NCLT for 
rectification in the Order through Interlocutory Application and the Hon’ble NCLT pronounced the order dated 04-06-

2024. In compliance to the said order, the equity shares held by promoters were cancelled and also the public 
shareholding was reduced on record date of 26th June 2024. 

2) Self-explanatory 

3) Self-explanatory 

4) During the year under review the Company has not maintained proper records of fixed assets showing full particulars 
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and Physical verification thereof. However, 
since the new management has taken charge and will ensure the maintenance and physical verification in coming 
period. 

5) During the year under review the cost records were not maintained. The manufacturing operations were closed for 
part of the year. Now, the new management has taken charge and started maintaining the records now. 

 
 

 
SHARE CAPITAL 
 

(i) The Company’s issued and paid up Share Capital before approval of Resolution plan was `Rs.17,99,15,610/- divided into 
1,79,91,561 fully paid up Equity shares of `Rs. 10/- each. As per the approved resolution plan ordered on 09-08-2023 read with 
order pronounced on dated 04-06-2024 on the interlocutory application, the Equity Shares held by Public Shareholders i.e public 
shareholding was reduced to 5,45,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating to Rs. 54,50,000/-. All public shareholders holding 
100 Equity Shares of the company on the Record Date were issued 3.52 new Equity Shares of the company and The Resolution 
Applicant (i.e new promoter) got issued 94,55,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid and the shareholding of erstwhile 
promoters were cancelled fully. This reorganization of the Equity Share Capital involving, the extinguishment of the Equity 
Shareholdings of the Promoter and reduction of equity shareholding of the public shareholders and the Issue of fresh equity shares 
to the Resolution Applicant has taken place on record date of 26-06-2024 which is after the approval of Annual Accounts as of now. 
 
The Paid-Up Equity Share Capital of the Company after the aforesaid changes is Rs. 10,00,00,000 /- made up of 1,00,00,000 Equity 
Shares of Rs.10/- each as under. 
 

Particulars No. of Equity Shares  % of Shareholding 

Promoter’s Holding (New Promoter) 94,55,000 94.55 

Public Holding 5,45,000 5.45 

Total 1,00,00,000 100 

  

FRESH ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES 

In compliance with the Hon’ble NCLT Order dated 09-08-2023 read with the order pronounced on Interlocutory application dated 

04-06-2024, the Company has issued and allotted 94,55,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/-each on 26-06-2024 to the resolution applicant. 

 
CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL 
 
As per the order pronounced by the Hon’ble NCLT dated 4th June 2024 against Interlocutory Application filed by the 
Resolution Professional for mismatch in the shareholding of promoter and public in the original order dated August 9, 
2023. The Reorganization of the Share Capital will be as under: 
 
The Company’s Paid-Up Capital till 26-06-2024 ( i.e Record Date) was Rs.17,99,15,610/- is divided into 1,79,91,561 Equity Shares 
of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up, and the same was held by the erstwhile promoters of the Company as well as the public shareholders. 
All issued and paid-up Equity Shares of the Company held by the Promoters and promoter Group on the Record Date shall stand 
cancelled and extinguished without any further act or deed to be done by the Company. The balance issued and paid-up Equity 
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Shares held by Public Shareholders of the Corporate Debtor on the Record Date shall stand reduced to 5,45,000 equity shares o f 
Rs. 10 each aggregating to Rs. 54,50,000/-. All public shareholders holding 100 Equity Shares of the Company on the Record Date 
shall be issued 3.52 new Equity Shares of the Company upon such reduction of share capital of the Company Fractional 
Shareholdings of less than 1 Equity Share shall be rounded off to the nearest higher or lower integer, and the Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agents of the Company shall have absolute discretion in deciding such rounding off to ensure that the aggregate allotment 
of new Equity Shares to the public shareholders of the Company becomes exactly 5,45,000. The Record date mentioned herein shall 
be the date to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company to determine the eligibility of the public shareholders who would be 
issued new shares consequent upon reduction of their shares in terms of this Plan. The Resolution Applicant (Ten on Ten Rubtech 
Private Limited) and or its nominees shall be issued 94,55,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid at par, aggregating to Rs,  
9,45,50,000/ as Equity Capital infusion at par after the remittance of the Resolution Plan amount of Rs. 9,45,50,000/- to the Resolution 
Professional/Company after approval of the Resolution Plan and as per schedule of payment thereof. 
 
This reorganization of the Equity Share Capital involving, the extinguishment of the Equity Shareholdings of the Promoter and, 
reduction of equity shareholding of the public shareholders and the Issue of fresh equity shares to the Resolution Applicant shall be 
deemed to be in compliance with all applicable Laws. The Paid-Up Equity Share Capital of the Company after the aforesaid changes 
shall be Rs. 10,00,00,000 /- made up of 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. The aggregate 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares as 
above comprising of 5,45,000 new Equity Shares to be issued to the public shareholders of the Company upon reduction of their 
share capital and 94,55,000 new Equity Shares to be issued to the Resolution Applicant and its nominees shall be listed by the Stock 
Exchange where the existing Equity Shares of the Company are presently listed. 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

With reference to Section 134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013, no loans, guarantees and investments other than trade investments 

have been made under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the earlier years as well as during the year under review. 

 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

With reference to section 134(2)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, related party transactions were entered into during the financial year 

ended 31st March, 2024 and all the Transactions are on Arm’s length basis, Hence disclosure of AOC-2 is not required. The 

Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been updated on the Company’s website. The web-link as 

required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 is 

http://www.innovativetyres.com/investor_relations/policies_programme 

 
DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
INITIATIVES (CSR) 

The Company has not reconstituted this committee for the Financial Year 2023-2024 as the provisions of Section 135 of 

Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company. 

 
DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES 

In view of suspension of all the directors during the CIRP period by virtue of NCLT Order dated March 28, 2022 the committees 

viz. Audit Committee, Stakeholders Committee, Nomination and remuneration committee etc. were not functioning and 

appointment of all three committees has been done on dated 10th November 2023 as under. 

 
DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Pursuant to Section 177(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its 

Powers) Rules, 2013, the company has re-constituted Audit Committee. Composition of Audit Committee is as follows. 

The Audit Committee of the company reconstituted with Two Independent Directors and one Non-Executive Director of the company. 

All the members have good understanding of Finance, Accounts and Law. 

 

Name of Member Category 

Mr. Umesh Ved Chairman to the Committee 

Ms. Jasmin Doshi Member to the Committee 

Mr. Ramesh Chander Chawla Member to the Committee 

Mrs. Shweta Pankaj Sharma, Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the committee. 

http://www.innovativetyres.com/investor_relations/policies_programme
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BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF TERMS OF REFERENCE: 

a) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial 

statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

b) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties; 

c) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the Company; 

d) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

e) Monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public issue, rights issue and preferential issue etc. before submitting the same 

to Stock Exchanges; 

f) Examination of the Financial statements 

 

COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR 
DUTIES 

As per the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirement) Regulations, 2015 the Company has been re-constituted its Nomination & Remuneration Committee inducting the 

following members w.e.f. 10th November 2023. 

 

Name of Member Category 

Mr. Umesh Ved Chairman to the Committee 

Ms. Jasmin Doshi Member to the Committee 

Mr. Ramesh Chander Chawla Member to the Committee 

Mrs. Shweta Pankaj Sharma, Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the committee. 

The brief contents of Nomination & Remuneration Policy of the Company prepared in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 are provided in 

Corporate Governance Report. Minutes of Nomination & Remuneration Committee meeting are reviewed by the Board of 

directors. 

 
BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF TERMS OF REFERENCE: 

In compliance with section 178 of the companies Act 2013 & Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirement) Regulations, 2015 The Company has reconstituted a Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board. All 

members of the committee are non-Executive Directors and two of them are Independent Directors. The terms of reference of 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“the Committee”) would inter alia include: 

 To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 

accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and/or removal. 

 To carry out the evaluation of every Director’s performance. 

 To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director. 

 To recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 

employees. Such Remuneration policy shall be disclosed in the Annual Report of the Company. 

 To review and recommend, subject to the Shareholders’ approval, the remuneration of the Managing Director and other 

Whole-time/ Executive Directors. 

 
STAKEHOLDERS GRIEVANCES COMMITTEE 

To solve the investor’s grievances, company has constituted Stakeholders/Investor Grievance Committee. 

The Chairperson of this Committee is non-executive director pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 20 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. 
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Composition of Committee is as follows: 

 

Name of Member Category 

Ms. Jasmin Doshi Chairperson to the Committee 

Mr. Umesh Ved Member to the Committee 

Mr. Ramesh Chander Chawla Member to the Committee 

 
VIGIL MECHANISM 

In compliance with the requirement of Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirement) Regulations, 2015, a Vigil Mechanism or Whistle Blower Policy for Directors, employees and other stakeholders to report 

genuine concerns has been established. The same has been uploaded on the website of the Company i.e. 

www.innovativetyres.com 

 
THE DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT’ 2013 
READ WITH RULE 5 (1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) AMENDMENT 
RULES, 2016: 

The Disclosure pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act’  2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016 is provided as Annexure – 4. 

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Members may kindly note that, the Directors of the company have joined the office from the period started from 09-08-2023. 

During the CIRP (i.e. between March 28, 2022 to August 09, 2023), Resolution Professional was entrusted with and responsible 

for the management of the affairs of the Company. The New (Reconstituted) Board is submitting this report in compliance with 

the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. 

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the New (Reconstituted) Board of Directors, based on the knowledge/ information 

gained by them, about the affairs of the Company, to the best of their knowledge state that: 

I. In preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable Accounting Standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

ii. The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of 
the loss of the Company for the year ended on that date; 

iii. The directors had Proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities; 

iv. The annual financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared on “going concern” basis; Internal 
financial controls have been laid down to be followed by the Company and such financial controls are adequate and are operating 
effectively, and 

vi. Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are 
adequate and operating effectively. 

 
BOARD EVALUATION 

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees and individual 

directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the corporate governance requirements as prescribed by Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”). 

The performance of the board was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis of the 

criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information, functioning etc. The 

performance of the Committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis 

of criteria such as the composition of committee, effectiveness of committee meetings etc. 

The Board and the Nomination & Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the individual directors on the 

basis of criteria such as the contribution of individual director to the board and committee meetings, representation of 
shareholder’s interest and enhancing shareholders value etc. In addition, Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of 

his role. Performance evaluation of independent directors were done by the entire board, excluding the independent director being 

evaluated. 

 

http://www.innovativetyres.com/
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 
A.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 
 
The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo have been furnished below: 
 
1. Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: 

Steam utilization efficiency improvement (Leakage). 
 
2.The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: NIL 

 

3.Capital investment on energy conservation equipments: NIL 

 

B. EFFORTS MADE TOWARDS TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

 

a. Efforts made towards technology absorption: 

The Company is exploring technology options for better manufacturing process. Development of R & D Centre during the 

year is mainly focused for exploring better technologies available in the existing product and new models. 

 

b. Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution 

The company is able to cater its customers through innovation in technology and through product mix Quality improvement 

 

c. Information regarding technology imported, during the last year: The Company has not imported technology.  

 
C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO  

 (Rs. In lakhs)  

  

During the year under review operations started after Hon’ble NCLT pronounced Order dated 09.08.2023, so the new 

management is trying to adopt proper systems as may be necessary.   

 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND TRIBUNALS 

There have been no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going 

concern status and the Company’s operations. However, the Hon’ble NCLT, Ahmedabad bench, has passed an Order 

dated 9th, August 2023 approving the Resolution Plan submitted by M/s Ten on Ten Rubtech Private Limited for revival of 

the Company. 

MATTER LISTED WITH NCLT 

An application was filed against Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited under Section 9 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 

2016 before the Hon’ble NCLT Ahmedabad with a prayer to commence the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 

(CIRP). The said application for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), has been admitted by Hon’ble 

National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Ahmedabad Bench (Hon’ble NCLT/Hon’ble Adjudicating Authority) vide its order 

dated 28th March 2022. Under the IBC proceedings, the powers of the Board were suspended with effect from 28th March, 

2022. The NCLT order also provided for a moratorium with effect from 28th March 2022 till the completion of the Corporate 

Insolvency Resolution process (CIRP) or until it approves the resolution plan or passes an order for liquidation of the 

company, whichever is earlier. 

Subsequently the Hon’ ble NCLT, Ahmedabad bench, has passed an Order dated 9th August 2023 approving the 

Resolution Plan submitted by M/s Ten on Ten Rubtech Private Limited for revival of the Company, thereby the Company 

has come out of the CIRP. 

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 

Total foreign exchange outgo  NIL      2.30 

Total foreign exchange inflow 7.05    NIL 
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The Company has complied with all the requirements including payments to all creditors as per the approved resolution 

plan. However, there was mismatch in the promoter’s shareholding and public shareholding in the Hon’ble NCLT Order 

dated 09-08-2023. This discrepancy was because one of the promoters’ groups has sold 9,87,000 (representing 5.49%) 

during CIRP period. Because of this discrepancy, the Company could not cancel promoter’s shareholding and reduce public 

shareholding to 5,10,000 equity shares as per the NCLT Order. Considering above situation an Interlocutory Application 

has been filed by the Chairman of Monitoring Committee appointed for implementation of the Resolution Plan, before 

Honorable NCLT, Ahmedabad on dated 1st November, 2023 for modifying the stipulation of cancellation of equity share 

capital of promoter shareholders and reduction of equity share capital of the public shareholders which was rejected hence 

again a separate interlocutory application was filed on 8th March 2024. The Honorable NCLT, Ahmedabad has approved 

the application and passed order on 4th June 2024 and the effect of the re-organization of share capital has been given on 

the record date 26th June 2024. 

  

DISCLOSURE OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE UNDER WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees. During the year under 

review, the Company has not received any complaints under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES UNDER COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

The Company has not issued any bonus shares, sweat equity shares, shares with differential voting rights and equity shares 

on rights basis during the year under review. 

No material changes and commitments which could affect the Company’s financial position have occurred between the end 

of the financial year of the Company and date of this report. 

There was no change in the nature of business during the year under review. 

The provisions regarding receipt of remuneration or commission from holding or subsidiary of the Company are not 

applicable and hence, the disclosure under Section 197 (14) is not required. 

The Company has complied with the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India on 

Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings. 
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FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LIMITED 

 

 

Robin Chawla 

Director & CFO  

(DIN-10277507) 

Date:29th August 2024 

Place: Halol  
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ANNEXURE – 1 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the Financial Year ended 31.03.2024 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited 

(CIN: L25112GJ1995PLC086579) 

Plot No. 1201, 1202, 1203 GIDC Halol, 

Panchmahals – 389350, Gujarat. 

 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by M/s. INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing our opinion thereon.  

 

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minutes book, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period ended on 31st 
March, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

1.We have examined the books, papers, minutes book, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by M/s. 
Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited (“The Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to the 
provisions of: 

 

I.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 

 

II.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there under; 

 

III.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of    Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

 

V.         The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and   Exchange Board of India Act, 1992  
(‘SEBI Act’) is applicable to the Company: - 

 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of   Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;   

 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;  

 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 
Guidelines, 1999 / The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employees Benefits), Regulations, 2014; 

Not applicable as the Company has not issued any options/ shares under the said Regulations during the year under review. 

 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

Not applicable as the Company has not issued any Debt Securities during the year under review. 

 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
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 h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;  

Not applicable as the Company has not delisted any of its shares from any of the Stock Exchanges during the year under 
review. 

 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;  

Not applicable as the Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review. 

 

j) The Company has complied with the requirements under the Equity Listing Agreements entered into with National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited;  

 

VI.   Other laws specifically applicable to the Company as per the representation given by the Company: 

  

Name of Acts applicable to the Company are as under: 

 

1.Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and rules made there under. 

 

2.Water (Prevention and control of pollution) Act, 1974 and rules made there under. 

 

3.Apprentices Act, 1961 and Apprenticeship Rules, 1992. 

 

4.Labour Welfare Fund (Gujarat) Rules,1962. 

 

5.The Customs Act, 1962. 

 

6.Central Goods & Services Tax (CGST). 

 

7.State Goods & Services Tax (SGST). 

 

8.Integrated Goods and Service Tax (IGST). 

 

9.Child Labour (prohibition & Regulation) Act, 1986. 

 

10.Contract Labour Regulation and Abolition Act, 1970. 

 

11.Customs Valuation (Determination of value of imported goods) Rules, 2007. 

 

12.Electricity Act, 2003 and Indian Electricity Rules,      1956/2005. 

 

13.Employee Deposit linked insurance scheme, 1976. 

 

14.Employee Compensation Act, 1923 and rules made there under. 

 

15.Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. 

 

16.Employee State Insurance Act, 1948. 

 

17.Employment Exchange Act, 1959 and Rules made there under. 

 

18.Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 and Equal Remuneration Rules, 1976. 

 

19.Explosives Act, 1884 and rules made there under. 

 

20.Factories Act, 1948. 

 

21.Foreign Trade Policy. 

 

22.Foreign Trade (Development & Regulation) Act, 1992 and Foreign Trade (Regulation) Rules, 1993. 
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23.Gujarat Panchayats, Municipalities municipal corporation Act, 1992 and Rules made there under. 

 

24.Gujarat Lifts and Escalators Act, 2008. 

 

25.Income Tax Act, 1961 and Income Tax Rules, 1962. 

 

26.Industrial Employment Act, 1946. 

 

27.Information Technology Act, 2008. 

28.Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. 

 

29.Minimum Wages Act, 1948. 

 

30.Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 and Central Motor Vehicle Rules, 1989. 

 

31.Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 and Payment of Bonus Rules, 1975. 

 

32.Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. 

 

33.Payment of Wages Act, 1936. 

 

34.Petroleum Act, 1934 and Petroleum Rules, 2002. 

 

35.Professional Tax Act, 1987. 

 

36.Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991 and Public Liability Insurance Rules, 1991. 

 

37.Gujarat Shop & Establishment Act. 

 

38.Sexual Harassment of women at workplace prevention, prohibition redressal Act, 1991.  

 

39.Shipping Bill and Bill of Export (Form) Regulations, 1991. 

 

 

During the year under review, the Company generally complied with all applicable provisions of the aforementioned Acts. 
However, there have been continuing delays in the payment of undisputed statutory dues.   

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

i)Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

ii)The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

 

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, Listing Agreements etc as mentioned above subject to the following observation: 

 

The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Ahmedabad Bench, initiated the Corporate Insolvency Resolution 
Process (CIRP) for M/s Innovative Tyres and Tubes Limited (Corporate Debtor) (CIN: L25112GJ1995PLC086579) through 
order No. C.P.(I.B)/261(AHM)2021 dated March 28, 2022. Accordingly, the Board was dissolved and Resolution Professional 
was appointed.   

 

Subsequently, on August 9, 2023, the Resolution Plan submitted by M/s Ten On Ten Rubtech Private Limited (Resolution 
Applicant or RA) in the CIRP was approved by the Hon'ble NCLT, Ahmedabad Bench, vide its order dated August 9, 2023.  

 

2) We further report that, the Company has, in our opinion, complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as 
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Rules made under the said Act and the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company, with regard to: 
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a) Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries therein; 
b) Closure of the Register of Members;  
c)Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies and the Central 
Government 

 d) Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar of Companies; 
e) Notice of Board meetings and Committee meetings of Directors; 
f) The meetings of Directors and Committees of Directors including passing of resolutions by circulation; 
g) The Annual General Meeting held on 29th December, 2023 for the financial year 2022-23; 
h) Minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the Board and its Committee meetings; 
i) Approvals of the Members, the Board of Directors, the Committees of Directors and the government authorities, wherever 
required; 
j) Constitution of the Board of Directors / Committee(s) of Directors, appointment, retirement and reappointment of Directors 
including the Managing Director and Whole-time Directors; 
k) Payment of remuneration to Directors including the Managing Director and Whole-time Directors, 
l) Appointment and remuneration of Auditors and Cost Auditors; 
m) Transfers and transmissions of the Company’s shares and make necessary endorsement on the reverse side of the 
respective Share Certificates; (During the year under review, no shares were transferred and transmission.) 
n) Declaration and payment of dividends; (During the year under review, the Company has not declared dividend.)  
o) Transfer of certain amounts as required under the Act to the Investor Education and Protection Fund and uploading of 
details of unpaid and unclaimed dividends on the websites of the Company and the Ministry of Corporate Affairs; 
(During the year under review, no dividend was declared, hence provision of investors education and protection fund is not 
applicable.) 
p) Borrowings and registration, modification and satisfaction of charges wherever applicable; 
q) Investment of the Company’s funds including investments and loans to others; 
r) Form of balance sheet as prescribed under Part I, form of statement of profit and loss as prescribed under Part II and 
General Instructions for preparation of the same as prescribed in Schedule VI to the Act; 
s) Directors’ report; 
t) Contracts, common seal, registered office and publication of name of the Company; and 
u) Generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made under the Act. 
 

 

3)We further report that: 

 

a) During the year, the Hon'ble NCLT, Ahmedabad Bench, approved a Resolution Plan submitted by a Resolution Applicant 
on August 9, 2023. 

 

As per the Resolution plan approved by the Honourable NCLT, all the previous directors vacated their office and new directors 
were appointed accordingly. However, the order dated August 9, 2023, contained a discrepancy in the promoter’s and public 
shareholding percentages (it was 14% and 86% whereas in the order of Honourable NCLT it was 19.49% and 80.51% 
respectively).  

 

To address this inconsistency, the Chairman of the Monitoring Committee, appointed to implement the Resolution Plan, filed 
an Interlocutory Application with the Hon'ble NCLT, Ahmedabad, on November 1, 2023, seeking to modify the stipulation 
regarding the cancellation of equity share capital for promoter shareholders and the reduction of equity share capital for public 
shareholders. The Hon'ble NCLT had reserved the order and the final was passed on 4th June 2024   confirming the revised 
shareholding pattern for public and promoter shareholding.  

 

b)  The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 

c)  Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

d) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

 

e)  The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act; and 
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f) There was no prosecution initiated, nor were any fines imposed, except for the following: 

 

1. A fine was imposed by the National Stock Exchange (NSE) due to a delay in the appointment of a qualified Company 
Secretary as the Compliance Officer for the quarters ended March 31, 2023, June 30, 2023, September 30, 2023, and 
December 31, 2023. The delay, lasting 92 days (from August 9, 2023, the date of the Hon'ble NCLT order, to November 10, 
2023, the date of appointment), resulted in a fine of ₹1,000 per day plus GST. The total fine of ₹92,000 plus GST was paid 
by the Company on May 17, 2024. 

 

2.A fine was also imposed by the NSE for the delay in submitting the audited financial statements for the year 2022-23, as 
required under Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Although a waiver of the fine was granted, the update on the NSE website is still pending. 

 

g) No Other penalties were imposed during the year under review under the Act, SEBI Act, SCRA, Depositories Act, Listing 
Agreement and Rules, Regulations and Guidelines framed under these Acts against / on the Company, its Directors and 
Officers. 

 

h) The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of appointment, their being 
independent and compliance with the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Directors and Management Personnel. 

 

 

4)The Company has complied with the provisions of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the Rules made 
under that Act, with regard to maintenance of minimum public shareholding. 

 

5)We further report that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Depositories Act, 1996 and the Byelaws framed 
there under by the Depositories with regard to dematerialization / re-materialization of securities and reconciliation of records 
of dematerialized securities with all securities issued by the Company. 

 

6)The Company has complied with the provisions of the FEMA, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made under that Act to 
the extent applicable. 

 

7)We further report that based on the information received and records maintained there are adequate systems and 
processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

8) We further report that during the period under review, the company has not allotted any equity shares. The Share 
application money received from new promoters was pending allotment due to non-receipt of the interlocutory order from the 
Hon'ble NCLT, Ahmedabad.  

 

 

                                                                                                                                                For, Swati Bhatt & Co. 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: 29/08/2024 

                              

 

                                                                                                                                                   Swati Yash Bhatt 

Partner 

Membership No.: F7323 

COP No: 8004 

PRC No.: 3568/2023 

                                                                                                                                        UDIN: F007323F001O70101 

 

                                                                                                                              

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “ANNEXURE A” and forms an integral part of 
this report. 
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“ANNEXURE A TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT” 

 

To,  

The Members, 

M/s. INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LIMITED 

CIN: L25112GJ1995PLC086579 

1201, 1202, 1203 - GIDC Halol, 

Panchmahals, Halol, Gujarat – 389350. 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter: 

 

1.Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. My responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

 

2.We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain responsible assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we follow provide a responsible basis for our 
opinion. 

 

3.We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the company. 

 

4.Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc. 

 

5.The compliance of the provision of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of management. Our examination was limited to verification of procedures on test basis. 

 

6.The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficacy or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

  

 

 

Place: Vadodara                                                                              Swati Bhatt 

Date: 29/08/2024                                                                             Partner 

Membership No.: F7323 

COP No: 8004 

PRC No.: 3568/2023 

UDIN: UDIN: F007323F001O70101  
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ANNEXURE – 2 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
In terms of Regulation 27 and 34(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 the report containing details of corporate governance systems and processes at Innovative Tyres & Tubes 

Limited is as under: 

 
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Background: 

In connection with the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process of the Company, the NCLT vide its order dated August 09, 2023 and 

dated June 04th, 2024 approved the Resolution Plan, submitted by M/s. Ten on Ten Rubtech Private Limited (Successful Resolution 

Applicants). 

Pursuant to the Hon’ble NCLT Order dated August 09th 2023, the Management of the operations of the Company have been 

taken over by the Representatives of Resolution Applicant/s on August 17,2023, being the Effective Date. A new Board has been 

constituted in the reporting period i.e. on August 09, 2023 and a new management has been put in place. 

In accordance with the provisions of the Code and the NCLT order, the approved Resolution Plan is binding on the Company and its 

employees, members, Creditors including the Central Government any State Government or any local authority to whom a debt in 

respect of the payment of dues arising under any law for the time being in force is due, guarantors and other stakeholders involved 

in the Resolution Plan till the date of the approved order. 

 
Company’ s Philosophy on Code of Governance 

The Company is committed to the adoption and adherence to Corporate Governance Practices that ensure; adequate transparency 

and build trust for Impactful collaboration with all its Stakeholders. The Company is committed to maintain high standards of  Corporate 

Governance to achieve excellence and gain confidence of all stakeholders. 

 
Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”): 

Since the powers of the Board stood suspended with effect from March 28, 2022 i.e. the date of commencement of the Insolvency 

proceedings and continued to remain so for the period under review, Six Board meetings were held during the financial year under 

review on 06-07-2023,22-08-2023,10-11-2023,10-11-2023,04-12-2023,06-03-2024 

Details of Directors presence in each board meeting is mentioned below: 

Composition: 

During the period under review, the Board had 6 directors, comprising of one non-executive director & two Non-Executive 

Independent Directors. In terms of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, a Company undergoing CIR process is not required to 

comply with Regulation 17, dealing with the requirement of composition of the Board of Directors up to 09-08-2023. Further, pursuant 

to the approval of the Resolution Plan, the existing Board ceased to exist and a new Board was reconstituted comprising of the 

following directors; 

Mr. Munish Chawla, Managing Director, 

Mr. Robin Chawla, Chief Financial Officer, 

Mr. Ramesh Chander Chawla, Non-Executive Director 

Mrs.Roshni Chawla,Director 

Mr.Umesh Ved, Independent Director 

Ms.Jasmin Doshi, Independent Director 

Name of Directors Number of Meetings attended / Total Meetings held during the F.Y. 2023-24. 

Mr. Mukesh Desai 1/1 
Mr. Keyoor Bakshi 0/1 
Dr. Mrs. Kalpana Joshipura 0/1 
Mr. Munish Chawla 5/5 
Mr.Robin Chawla 5/5 
Mr.Ramesh Chandar Chawla 5/5 
Mrs.Roshni Chawla 4/4 
 Mr. Umesh Ved 4/4 
Ms.Jasmin Doshi  4/4 
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Further the new Board has reconstituted all the committees dated 10 th November 2023 as well as appointed Company secretary on 

10th November 2023. 

 

DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE: 

Directors Mr. Munish Chawla Robin Chawla Roshni Chawla and Ramesh Chander Chawla are the Family members. There 

is no personal relation with Independent Directors. 

 

NUMBER OF SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS HELD BY NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: 

Non-executive directors do not hold any shares and convertible instruments in the Company. 

 

FAMILIARIZATION TO INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

In Compliance of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015 Company has conducted a familiarization program for Independent 

Directors of the Company for familiarizing with their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in 

which the Company operates, business model of the Company, etc. The details of such familiarization program for 

Independent Directors are posted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at 

http://www.innovativetyres.com/investor_relations/policies_programme 

 

Meeting and attendance: 

In view of the company remained under CIRP till August 09th, 2023 so, the Reconstitution of committees has been done on 

November 10th,2023. The last Annual General Meeting (AGM) was held on December 29, 2023. The AGM was attended by: 

Mr. Munish Chawla, Managing Director  
Mr. Robin Chawla, Director & Chief Financial Officer, 
Mr. Umesh Ved, Independent Director 

Ms. Jasmin Doshi, Independent Director 

Board Procedure: 

Since the powers of the Board was suspended, there matters required to be tabled to the Board of Directors were put up for the review 

and the decision of the Resolution Professional from time to time in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016, was obtained up to 09-08-2024 thereafter all the work has been handed over to the new 

management/Board. 

 
Audit Committee: 
 
The Audit Committee of the company consists of two Independent Directors and one Non-Executive Director of the 
Company. During the year appointment of both the independent directors was done. All the Directors have good 
understanding Finance, Accounts and Law. During the financial year under review, audit committee met three times 
November 10, 2023, December 04, 2023 and March 06, 2024.Composition of audit committee of the company is as follows: 
 

Sr. No. Name Category Nos. of meeting attended 
 

1 
Mr. Umesh Ved 

Chairman 3/3 

2 Ms. Jasmin Doshi Member 3/3 

3 Mr. Ramesh Chander Chawla Member 3/3 

 
Mrs. Shweta Pankaj Sharma, Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the Committee. 
 
 
 

http://www.innovativetyres.com/investor_relations/policies_programme
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Brief description of terms of reference: 
 
Role of the Audit Committee is prescribed under the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
7 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 
2015. Brief description of the same includes: 
 
1. Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process; 
2. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties; 
3. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment/re-appointment of auditors of the company. 
4. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems. 
5. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters. 
6. Examination of the financial statement and auditor’s report thereon. 
 
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 
 
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the company consisted of three Independent Directors of the Company. 
During the year under review, one independent director resigned and one non- executive director was inducted. The 
members of the Nomination & Remuneration committee met on November 10th, 2023 and March 06th, 2024. Composition 
of Nomination & Remuneration committee of the company is as follows: 
 

Sr. No. Name Category Nos. of meeting attended 
 

1 
Mr. Umesh Ved 

Chairman 2/2 

2 Ms. Jasmin Doshi Member 2/2 

3 Mr. Ramesh Chander Chawla Member 2/2 

Mrs. Shweta Pankaj Sharma, Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the Committee. 
 
Brief description of terms of reference: 
In compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (LODR), Regulation, 2015, 
the Company has 
constituted a Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board. All members of the Committee are Independent 
Directors. The terms of 
reference of the Committee inter alia, include: 
1. To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 
accordance with the 
criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every 
Director’s performance. 
2. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and 
recommend to the Board 
a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. 
3. Discharge such other function(s) or exercise such power(s) as may be delegated to the Committee by the Board from 
time to time. 
The Board have approved a Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company and available on the website of the 
Company. This Policy 
is in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the applicable rules thereto and Regulation 19 
and Schedule II, Part D of the SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015. 
 
Performance Evaluation Criteria of selection of Independent Directors: 
Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board, in consultation with 
its Nomination & Remuneration Committee, has formulated a framework containing, inter-alia, the process, format, 
attributes and criteria for performance evaluation of the entire Board of the Company, its Committees and Individual 
Directors, including Independent Directors. 

 
During the year, performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Executive Director were carried out by the Independent 
Directors at their separate meeting held on 06-03-2024. The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results. 
Performance evaluation of entire Board, and individual directors and that of Committees for the financial year 2023-24 was 
done at their meeting held on  06-03-2024. 
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DETAILS OF REMUNERATION TO ALL THE DIRECTORS: 
The aggregate value of salary and perquisites paid during the year 2023-24 to the Executive Directors are as follows: 
Mr. Munish Chawla, Managing Director---    Rs. 1.10 Lakhs 
Mr. Robin Chawla, Director & Chief Financial Officer –   Rs. 0.90 Lakhs 
 
Sitting fees paid to Independent & Non-Executive Directors during the year 2023-24 are as follows: 
Mr. Umesh Ved –  Rs.0.60 Lakhs 
Ms. Jasmin Doshi --   Rs.0.60 Lakhs 
Mr. Ramesh Chander Chawla-- Rs.0.60 Lakhs 
Mrs.Roshni Chawla—  Rs.0.15 Lakhs 
 
STAKEHOLDERS, SHAREHOLDERS’/ INVESTOR’S GRIEVANCES COMMITTEE: 
In compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 and Schedule II, Part D of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. A Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Board has been Re-constituted to solve the investor’s 
grievances. During the year under review, Stakeholder’s/Investor Grievance Committee met on 10-11-2023 and 06-03-
2024.Composition of the Committee is as follows: 
 

Name of Member Category No. Of meeting attended 

Ms. Jasmin Doshi Chairperson to the Committee  2/2 

Mr. Umesh Ved Member to the Committee  2/2 

Mr. Ramesh Chander Chawla Member to the Committee  2/2 

 
Name of the Non-Executive Director heading the committee: 
 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is headed by Ms. Jasmin Doshi, Independent Director of the Company. 
Details of investor complaints received and redressed during the year 2023-24 are as follows: 
 
Number of shareholder’s complaints received and resolved –    NIL 
Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders –  NIL 
Number of pending complaints –      NIL 
 
No complaints were received during the reporting period. 

 
NUMBER OF SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS HELD BY NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: 

Non-executive directors do not hold any shares and convertible instruments in the Company. 

GENERAL BODY MEETING 
The details of Annual General Meetings held during the last three years are as follows: 

 
Details of Special Resolutions passed in the previous three AGMs: 

The members have passed following special resolutions in the 28th AGM held on 29th, December 2023 are: 
1. Ratification of Appointment and Approve Remuneration of Mr. Munish Chawla (DIN:06454015) as Managing Director of the Company. 
2. Ratification of Mr. Ramesh Chander Chawla (DIN:08303533) as Director of the Company. 
3. Appointment of Mr. Umesh Ved (DIN: 00003399) as an Independent Director of the Company 
4. Appointment of Ms. Jasmin Doshi (DIN: 08686876) an Independent Director of the Company. 
5. Ratification of Appointment of Mr. Robin Chawla (DIN: 10277507) as Director & CFO of the Company. 
6. To Approve Related Party Transactions to be entered into by the Company. 

No special resolutions passed through postal ballot during last three years. 

Year Day, Date and Time Venue 

2022-23 Friday, 29th December, 2023 at 10:00 a.m Through Video Conferencing (VC) /Other Audio-Visual Means 
(OVAM). 

2021-22  Wednesday, 28th September, 2022 at 10:00 
a.m.  

Through Video Conferencing (VC) /Other Audio-Visual Means 
(OVAM).  

2020-21  Wednesday, 29th September, 2021 at 9:00 
a.m.  

Through Video Conferencing (VC) /Other Audio-Visual Means 
(OVAM).  
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MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

Company is listed on NSE Emerge platform. Hence, during the financial year 2023-24, half year results and year ended results have 

been filed with Stock Exchange in compliance of Listing Regulations. Requirement of Publishing of Results in Newspaper as 

per Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable for SME Listed 

companies. The official announcements, presentations are posted on official website of the company www.innovativetyres.com 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

 

Date, Time and Venue of AGM 23rd September, 2024 through video conferencing or other audio-visual means at 10.00 
A.M. 

Financial Year From 1st April to 31st March of the following year 

Date of Book Closure Wednesday 11th September 2024 to Monday 23rd September 2024,  (both days inclusive) 

Dividend payment date No Dividend declared 

Listed on Stock Exchange National Stock Exchange of India, EMERGE platform 

Trading Symbol INNOVATIVE 

ISIN INE070Y01015 (New ISIN is awaited for corporate action) 

 

Market Price Data and Performance in comparison to other indices 

The Company is listed on EMERGE platform of National Stock Exchange of India. Monthly market price high, low for the year 

2023-24 and comparison at NSE is given hereunder: 

 

Months High (`Rs.) Low (`Rs.) NSE-Shares  
(Volume in 
Nos.) 

NSE-Shares  
(Value in 
Rs.) 

Apr-23            2.60 2.20 1,56,000 3,88,800 

May-23 2.55 2.00 2,37,000 5,59,650 

Jun—23 2.65 2.10 2,04,000 4,87,800 

Jul—23 2.85            2.10 4,02,000 10,29,600 

Aug-23 4.25 2.45 7,80,000 24,90,750 

Sep—23 8.70 4.45 30,12,000 2,10,29,550 

Oct-23 7.05 4.80 21,09,000 1,28,53,350 

Nov—23 5.80 4.50 15,09,000 75,79,500 

Dec-23 6.75 4.75 19,53,000 1,09,87,800 

Jan-24 10.25 6.80 36,33,000 3,01,99,950 

Feb-24 9.45 7.20 14,88,000 1,24,94,400 

Mar-24 8.50 5.30 10,29,000 68,27,850 

Details of Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
M/s Link Intime India Private Limited 

C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri 

Marg, Vikhroli (West) Mumbai,  

Maharashtra– 400083. 

Contact No: 022 4918 6000 

Website: www.linkintime.co.in 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.innovativetyres.com/
http://www.linkintime.co.in/
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Share Transfer System 

All the transfer requests received are processed by the Registrars and Transfer Agents. 

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2024 

 

 

S 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY: 

As on 31st March, 2024 out of total 1,79,91,561 share, 1,58,53,793 shares (88.12% of the issued capital of the company) were in 

dematerialized mode. All promoters’ shares are in dematerialized mode. Company is listed on NSE Emerge platform and all the 

shares are traded on NSE Emerge platform. 

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments: 

NIL  

Plant Locations: 

Tyre Plant: Plot No. 1201, 1202,1203 GIDC Halol, Panchmahals – 389350, Gujarat. 

Tube Plant: Plot No. 1704, GIDC Halol, Panchmahals – 389350, Gujarat. 

Address for Correspondence: 

Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited 

Reg. Off.: Plot No. 1201, 1202, 1203 GIDC Halol, 

Panchmahals – 

389350, Gujarat. 

E-mail: investors@innovativetyres.co.in 

Contact No.: 02676 - 220621 

CIN: L25112GJ1995PLC086579 

 
OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

Related Party Transactions: 

During the financial year under review, your Company has transactions / contracts / agreements that are classified as“Related Party 

Transactions” under provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. These contracts/arrangements/ 

agreements have been in the ordinary course of business, to facilitate the business of the Company and have been approved by 

the Audit Committee from time to time. Necessary disclosures as required by Accounting Standards (AS-18) have been made in the 

Notes to the financial statements. As required under Regulation 46(2) of SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015, the Company has also 

formulated a Related Party Transactions Policy which is available on the website of the Company 

http://www.innovativetyres.com/investor_relations/policies_programme 

There are no materially significant transactions with the related parties viz. promoters, directors or the management or their 

relatives or subsidiaries/associate concerns etc. that had potential conflict with the company’s interest. Therefore, there is no 

requirement to report any transaction in Form No. AOC-2 in terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of 

Sr. No. Shareholding of Nominal Value (INR) Number of 
Shareholders 

% Of Total Share Amount 
(INR) 

% of Total 
Share Amount 

1 1 to 5000 1 0.05 100 0.0001 
2 5001 to 10000 5 0.25 40000 0.0222 
3 10001 to 20000 3 0.15 54420 0.0302 
4 20001 to 30000 1337 66.85 40102960 22.2899 
5 50001 to 100000 453 22.65 32010000 17.7917 
6 100001 to ********** 201 10.05 107708130 59.8659 

Total 2000 100 179915610 100 

 

mailto:investors@innovativetyres.co.in
http://www.innovativetyres.com/investor_relations/policies_programme
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the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 
Legal Compliances: 

There were no instances of material non-compliances during the year under review. No strictures or penalties were imposed on the 

Company by SEBI, Stock Exchanges or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years, 

except as stated in secretarial Audit Report by the Secretarial Auditor. 

 
Vigil Mechanism: 

The Company has a formal Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism Policy. The Directors of the Company affirms that no personne l 

have been denied access to the Audit Committee. 

 
Mandatory & Non-Mandatory Requirements: 

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance and endeavors to adopt good corporate 

governance practices which help in adoption of non-mandatory requirements. 
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 
{Under Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V (E) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015} 
 
 
To, 
The Members of 
Innovative Tyres and Tubes Limited, 
1201-02-03, GIDC Halol-389350 
District Panchmahals. 
 
The Corporate Governance Report prepared by Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited (“the Company”), contains details as stipulated in 
regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“the Listing Regulations”) with respect to Corporate 
Governance for the year ended March 31, 2024 pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the Company with the National Stock Exchange 
Limited (Herein after referred to as the “Stock Exchange”). 
 
Management’s Responsibility: 
The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the Company including the preparation 
and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. The Management along with the Board of Directors are also 
responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, 
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India. This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Corporate Governance Report. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility: 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, it is our responsibility to provide a reasonable assurance whether for the year 
ended March 31, 2024 the Company has complied, with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations. 
 
Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 
 
Opinion: 
In our opinion, based on our examination of the relevant records and to the best of our information and according to explanations given 
to us, and representations provided by the management, we certify that, the Company, has complied with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated, in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations. 
 
Other Matters and Restriction on use: 
We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
The certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose to enable the Company to comply with 
the requirement of the Listing Regulations, for the year ended March 31, 2024, and it should not be used by any other person or for any 
other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to 
whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing. 
 

For Swati Bhatt & Co. 
Place: Vadodara 
Date: 29/08/2024 
 
 
            
              Swati Yash Bhatt 

Partner 
MembershipNo.: F7323 
COP No: 8004 
PRC No.: 3568/2023 

      UDIN: F007323F001069989 
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ANNUAL DECLARATION BY CEO / MANAGING DIRECTOR PURSUANT TO PART D OF 
SCHEDULE V (REGULATION 34) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS & DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT) 

REGULATIONS, 2015 

 

I, Munish Chawla, Managing Director of M/s Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited hereby declare that all the members of the Board of 

Directors of the Company and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct applicable to them 

as laid down by the Company in terms of Part D Schedule V (Regulation 34) of the Listing Regulation entered into with the Stock 

Exchanges for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

 
For Innovative Tyres & Tubes Limited 

 
Sd/- 

                                                                                                                                                                                 Munish Chawla 
Place: Vadodara                                                                                                                                         Managing Director 
Date:  24th August 2024                                                                                                                               (DIN 06454015) 
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ANNEXURE – 3 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

In terms of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 the Management 

Discussion and Analysis Report (MDAR) is structured as follows: 

 Industry structure and developments 

 Opportunities 

 Segment-wise or product-wise performance 

 Outlook 

 Threats, Risk and Concerns 

 Internal Control System 

 Financial and operational performance 

 Material Development in Human Resources 

Some Statements in this discussion may be forward looking. The Company’s actual results, performance or achievements 

can thus differ materially from those projected in any such forward-looking statements in the management discussion and 

analysis on account of various factors such as changes in Government regulations, tax regimes, impact of competition, etc. 

 
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 

The Company is principally engaged in the business of manufacturing and Processing of Automotive Tyres and Tubes. During 

the year under review the Company came out of CIRP process and started the production as well as Export. 

 
OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS: 

The new management of the Company is well equipped with the vision to take Company towards high growth with optimum 

utilization of resources of the Company in proper manner. New management is taking diligent efforts to boost the capacity utilization 

of the Company which remained underutilized in the past few years due to inadequate working capital. The Company is in the process 

of hiring qualified professionals to stimulate the vision of new management towards the Company. The Company is well placed to 

encash the opportunity in terms of ease of doing business and the relaxations provided by the government which will accelerate 

the business of the company in terms of revenue. 

The Company was in CIRP since near about 2 years and not been performing well in the past few years with respect to business 

operations due to tremendous financial pressure which led to inadequate working Capital. The new management of the Company is 

trying to streamline the business activities of the Company. The extent of impact on the future operational and financial performance 

of the Company will depend on the future developments, the impact of the CIRP on customers, vendors all of which are to be convinced 

by the time. 

 
SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE 

Since, the company operates its business under one segment only the report on segment wise performance is not furnished. 

 
OUTLOOK: 

The new management of the Company shall review the existing risk management policy and lay down defined risk management 

mechanism covering the risk mapping and trend analysis, risk exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation process. Management 

is yet to set up exercises to be carried out to identify and evaluate, manage and monitor various risk. 
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Annexure - 4 

THE DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT’ 2013 
READ WITH RULE 5 (1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) AMENDMENT 
RULES, 2016 ARE AS UNDER: 

 
The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the financial year; 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Directors/KMP Remuneration of 
Director/KMP for 

FY 2023-24 
(` In Lakhs) 

% Increase in 
Remuneration 

in the F.Y. 2023-
24 

Ratio of Remuneration of 
each Director/to median 

remuneration of 
employees 

Comparison of the 
remuneration of the 

KMP against the 
performance of the 

company 

1. Mr.Munish Chawla 

(Managing Director) 
1.10 N.A N.A The company has come 

out of CIRP on 09-08-

2023 and remuneration 

of Directors and KMP are 

for part of the year. 

Hence, not comparable. 

2. Mr. Robin Chawla 

(Director & CFO) 
0.90 N.A N.A  

3. Ms.Shweta Sharma 

(Company 

Secretary & 

compliance officer) 

1.79 N.A. N.A.  

The remuneration of KMP is as per the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Companies Act 2013 and other applicable provisions as may be 

applicable to Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees. 

None of the employees of the company who has drawn salary more than the amount prescribed under the Companies 

[Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014 along with the circular issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 

June 30, 2016. Therefore, the Company is not required to provide statement under section 197[12] of the Act read with Rule 5[2] of the 

Companies [Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014 and hence the said statement is not available for 

inspection at the Registered Office of the Company. 



Annual Report 2023-24 41 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
To, 
The Members of 
Innovative Tyres and Tubes Limited, 

1201-02-03, GIDC Halol-389350 

Dist Panchmahals. 

We have examined the relevant Registers, Records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Innovative Tyres 

and Tubes Limited having CIN: L25112GJ1995PLC086579 and having registered office at 1201-02-03, GIDC Halol-389350 Dist 

Panchmahals (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 

Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number 

(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its 

officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended 

on March 31, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory. 

 

S No Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in the Company 

1. 
  UMESH HARJIVANDAS VED 00003393 

 
10/11/2023 

2. 
JASMIN JAYKUMAR DOSHI 08686876 

 
10/11/2023 

3. 
ROSHNI CHAWLA 10276412 

 
10/11/2023 

4. 
ROBIN CHAWLA 10277507 

 
10/11/2023 

5. 
MUNISH CHAWLA 06454015 

 
09/08/2023 

6. 
RAMESH CHANDER CHAWLA 08303533 

 
09/08/2023 

 
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of 
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
                 For Swati Bhatt & Co. 
Place: Vadodara 
Date: 29/08/2024 

 
Swati Yash Bhatt 
Partner 
Membership No.: F7323 

                             COP No: 8004 
                                                                                                                                                           PRC No.: 3568/2023 

         UDIN: F007323F001070550 
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CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION 

I, Mr. Robin Chawla, Director & CFO, certify that: 

a) We have reviewed the financial statements and cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024 and to the best of our 

knowledge and belief: 

i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 

might be misleading; 

ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 

Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended 31st March, 

2024 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct. 

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated the 

effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. Deficiencies in the design or 

operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware have been disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee 

and steps have been taken to rectify these deficiencies. 

d) i) There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the year under reference; 

ii) There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the year requiring disclosure in the notes to the 

financial statements; and 

iii) We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement therein of the management or any 

employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

 

 

Sd/- 

Place: Vadodara       

Date: 29th August 2024               Robin Chawla 

         Director & CFO (DIN 10277507) 
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Annexure - 5 

STATEMENT ON IMPACT OF AUDIT QUALIFICATIONS (FOR AUDIT REPORT WITH MODIFIED OPINION) 

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial Year ended March 31, 
2024 [See Regulation 33/52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016 

 

I Sr. No Particulars `Rs. In Lacs 
Audited Figures (as 

reported before 
adjusting 

for qualifications) 

`Rs. In 
Lacs Adjusted 

Figures (audited 
figures after 

adjusting for 
qualifications) 

 1 Turnover / Total income 2238.12 2238.12 

2 Total Expenditure 2617.79 2617.79 

3 Net Profit/(Loss) 3449.69 3449.69 

4 Earnings Per Share 19.17 19.17 

5 Total Assets 4212.89 4212.89 

6 Total Liabilities 4235.34 4235.34 

7 Net Worth (22.45) (22.45) 

8 Any other financial item(s) 

(as felt appropriate by the management) 

-- -- 

II Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately): 

 a. Details of Audit 

Qualification: 
a) As stated in Note 8 of the statement, the Company could 
not cancel Equity shares held by Promoters and reduce 
equity share capital of the public shareholders as per the 
order of Hon'ble NCLT Ahmedabad pronounced on 9th 
August 2023. However, there is a difference in Promoter and 
Public shareholding as per Hon'ble NCLT order and Actual 
shareholding as on Date of Honourable NCLT Order (i.e. 
August 09,2023). The Company has applied to Hon'ble 

NCLT for rectification in the Order. Since the Order is 
awaited, we are unable to determine the quantum of 
Cancellation and Reduction in Equity share capital. 
. 
(b) As stated in Note 3 to the statement, Post approval of 
Resolution Plan by Hon'ble NCLT, Ahmedabad Bench, the 
approved resolution applicant took charge of the affairs of 
the Company with effect from August 71,2023 and 
constituted the new Board of Directors of the Company. 
Further, the note explains that since the new Board of 
Directors took charge of the Company with effect from 
August 17,2023, they are not liable or responsible for any 
actions regarding the information pertaining to the period 
prior to August 1.7,2023 and has relied upon the 
explanations, clarifications, representations and 
statements made by the Resolution Professional of the 
Company. 
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Company management informed that 
 

The Company was in CIRP and The National Company 
LawTribunal (NCLT) Ahmedabad Bench order dated 09th 
August 2023 has approved the Resolution Plan, 
accordingly, the insolvency proceedings against the 
company came to an end. As per the Resolution 
planapproved by the Honourable NCLT, all the previous 
directors vacated their office and new directors were 
appointed than only. ln the order dated 09 08 2023 there 
was a mismatch in promoter's and public shareholding (it 
was 14% and 86% whereas in the order of Honourable 
NCLT it was 19.49% and 80.51% respectively). Therefore, 
an interlocutory Application was filed by the Chairman of 
Monitoring Committee appointed for implementation of the 
Resolution Plan, with Honourable NCLT, Ahmedabad on 
dated 1st November, 2023 for modifying the stipulation of 
cancellation of equity share capital of promoter 
shareholders and reduction of equity share capital of the 
public shareholders, which was rejected hence again a 
separate interlocutory application was filed on 8th March 
2024. the last hearing was done on 14th May 2024 and the 
Honourable NCLT, Ahmedabad has reserved the order. 
 
Consequent to above situation, the allotment of equity 
shares to the Successful Resolution Applicant could not be 
made and the share application money received to the 
tune of Rs.950.00 lakhs remained un allotted awaiting 
order from Honourable NCLT, Ahmedabad. 
 
As it is First year after CIRP and manufacturing got started 
after completion of half year so earnings are           not as 
per expectations. 
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 b. Type of Audit 

Qualification: Qualified 

Opinion / Disclaimer 

of Opinion / 

Adverse Opinion 

Qualified 

c. Frequency of 

qualification: Whether 

appeared first time / 

repetitive / since how 

long continuing 

This is first time since the company has been taken over by the new management. 

d. For Audit 

Qualification(s) where 

the impact is quantified 

by the auditor, 

Management’s Views: 

Impact is not ascertainable as the reason mentioned in the Auditor's Report itself. 

e. For Audit 

Qualification(s) where 

the impact is not 

quantified by the auditor: 

 

i. Management’s 

estimation on 

the impact of 

audit 

qualification 

Impact is not ascertainable as the reason mentioned in the Auditor's Report itself. 

ii If management 

is unable to 

estimate the 

impact, reasons 

for the same 

Impact is not ascertainable as the reason mentioned in the Auditor's Report itself. 

iii Auditors’ 

Comments on (i) 

or (ii) above: 

Impact is not ascertainable as the reason mentioned in the Auditor's Report itself. 

III. Signatories 

 

 

 For Haribhakti & Co LLP.           Mr. Robin Chawla                                
 Chartered Accountants                    Director & CFO                                                                         
 FRN: 103523W/W100048          DIN No: 10277507 

Yash Bhatt  

M. No.117745  

  

 

 
Mr.Umesh Ved                      Mr. Munish Chawla  
Audit Committee Chairman      Managing Director  
DIN :00003393        DIN: 06454015 
Place: Vadodara                                                                                 Place: Vadodara  
Date: 30-05-2024                                                                                Dated:30-05-2024                                                                                                                                         



3 1 2 NOTICE STATUTORY REPORTS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

44 INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LIMITED 

 

 

 



HARIBHAKTI E CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of lnnovative Tyres and Tubes Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financiaI statements of lnnovative Tyres and Tubes Limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 , 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss

and the Statement of Cash Ftows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements
inctuding a summary of significant accounting policies and other exptanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as "financiaI statements").

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to us,

except for the possibte effects of the matters described in the Basis for Quatified Opinion section of
our report, the aforesaid financiat statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principtes generauy accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March

31,2024, its profit and its cash ftows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

(a) As stated in Note Z(1Xq) ofthe financial statement, The Company could not cancel Equity shares

held by Promoters and reduce equity share capital of the public shareholders because of

difference in Promoter and Public shareholding as per Hon'ble NCLT order and Actual

shareholding as on Date of Honorable NCLT Order (i.e. August 09, 2023). The Compa ny has applied

to Hon'ble NCLT for rectification in the Order. Since the Hon'ble NCLT has reserved the order but

the order is awaited, we are unable to determine the quantum of Cancellation and Reduction in

Equity share capital.

(b) As stated in Note z(1)(Q) of the financial statement, Post approval of Resolution Plan by Hon'ble

NCLT, Ahmedabad Bench, the approved resolution applicant took charge of the affairs of the

Company with effect from August L7, 2023 and constituted the new Board of Directors of the

Company. Further, the note explains that since the new Board of Directors took charge of the

Company with effect from August 17, 2023, they are not liable or responsible for any actions and

regarding the information pertaining to the period prior to August L7,2023 a^d has relied upon

the explanations, clarifications, representations and statements made by the Resolution

Professional of the Company.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (sAs) specified under section
'I43(10) of the Act. Our responsibitities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibitities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of Chartered

Accountants of lndia ("lCAl") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit

Haribhaktl & co. LIP' chartered Accountants Regn. No. AAC- 3768, a timited Uabrtity partnership regjstered in lndia (from a firm Haribhakti & Co. FRN: t0j523w)
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of the financiat statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and we have
futfitted our other ethicat responsibitities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We betieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our quatified opinion on the financiat statements.

Emphasis of Matter

(a) We draw attention to Note Z(1XQ) of the financial statement wherein:
i. The Company has reversed various liabitities (net) of Rs 3826.63 takhs as per the

Hon'bte NCLT order and the said gain of Rs 3826.63 takhs has been treated and shown
as exceptional items in the statement of profit and loss.

As per the Hon'bte NCLT'S order, the company is required to make payment to
creditors as per the imptementation schedute. The Company has made payments for
the due creditors as per the implementation schedute of the Resotution Ptan except
for Rs. 4.91 lacs pertaining to a creditor and certain past emptoyees for want of their
banking detaits. This remaining amount has been deposited in a special account
maintained by the Resotution Appticant M/s Ten on Ten Pvt Ltd.

(b) We draw attention to Note J of the financial statement, the amount of lmpairment Loss

recognized in statement of Profit & Loss Account is Rs 9.23 Lacs and the amount of reversal
of lmpairment Loss in statement of Profit & Loss Account is Rs 806.34 lakhs on the basis of
independent vatuation reports.

Our report is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit i{atters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professionat judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financiat statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financiat statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Except for the matters described in the Basis

for Quatified Opinion section above, we have determined that there are no other key audit matters
to communicate in our report.

Other lnformation

The Resolution Professional (RP), Board of Directors and the management are responsibte for the
other information. The other information comprises the information inctuded in the Management
Discussion and Anatysis, Board's Report inctuding Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate Governance
and Sharehotder's lnformation, but does not inctude the financiat statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report inctuding Annexures to Board's Report,
Corporate Governance and Sharehotder's lnformation are expected to be made avaitabte to us
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conctusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibitity is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiatty inconsistent with
the financiaI statements or our knowtedge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materialty
misstated.

lf, based on the work we have performed, we conctude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The Resotution Professional (RP) and Company's Board of Directors are responsibte for the matters
stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financiat position, financjal performance and cash ftows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principtes generalty accepted in lndia, inctuding the
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with retevant rutes issued

thereunder. This responsibitity atso inctudes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregutarities; setection and apptication of appropriate
accounting poticies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonabte and prudent; and design,
imptementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controts, that were operating
effectivety for ensuring the accuracy and compteteness of the accounting records, retevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from materiat misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financiaI statements, the management are responsibte for assessing the Company's
abitity to continue as a going concern, disctosing, as appticabte, matters retated to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to tiquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no reatistic atternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are atso responsibte for overseeing the Company's financiat reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabte assurance about whether the financiaI statements as a whote
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that inctudes our opinion. Reasonabte assurance is a high tevet of assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs witt always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they coutd reasonabty be expected to inftuence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of this financiat statements. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professionaI judgment and maintain professionaI skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error, design and perform audit nsive to those risks, and obtain

Responsibi lities of Resolution Professional (RP), Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Financial Statements



audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resutting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may invotve cottusion, forgery, intentionat omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internaI contro[.

Obtain an understanding of internal control retevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
atso responsibte for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controts with reference to financiaI statements in ptace and the operating effectiveness
of such controts.

Evatuate the appropriateness of accounting poticies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disctosures made by management.

Conctude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists retated to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's abitity to continue as a

going concern. lf we conctude that a materiat uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disctosures in the financial statements or, if such

disctosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conctusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evatuate the overatl presentation, structure and content of the financiaI statements, inctuding
the disctosures, and whether the financiaI statements represent the undertying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, inctuding any significant deficiencies in
internat control that we identify during our audit.

We atso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have comptied with
retevant ethicaI requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them atI
retationships and other matters that may reasonabty be thought to bear on our independence, and

where appticabte, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regutation prectudes public disctosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter shoutd not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so woutd reasonabty be expected to outweigh the pubtic interest benefits of
such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government of lndia in terms of section 143(1'l) of the Act, we report in "Annexure 'l", a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent appticabte.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and except for the matters described in the Basis for Quatified Opinion section
above, obtained atl the information and exptanations which to the best of our knowtedge and
betief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. Except for the possibte effects of the matters described in the Basis for Quatified Opinion
section above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Batance sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Ftows deatt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Quatified Opinion
section above, in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements compty Mth the Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with retevant rules issued thereunder;

e. The matters described under the Basis for Quatified Opinion above, in our opinion, may have
an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

f. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2024,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquatified as on March
3'l , 2014 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

h. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controts with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controts, refer to our
separate report in "Annexure 2" and we have expressed disclaimer of opinion for the reasons

stated in the said report;

i. With respect to the other matter to be inctuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to
us, the remuneration paid/ provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be inctuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rute 1 1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to us:

(i) Except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, The
Company has disctosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements - Refer Note z(3) on Contingent es to the financial statementsL
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g. The quatification retating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the Basis for Quatified Opinion section above.



(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts inc(uding derivative contracts for which
there were any materiaI foreseeabte losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

(iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or toaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
inctuding foreign entities (" lntermediaries"), wjth the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the lntermediary shatt, whether, directty or indirectty tend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behatf of the Company
("Uttimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behatf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iv) (b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowtedge and betief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), inctuding foreign
entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shatl, whether, directty or indirectty, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behatf of the Funding Party ("Uttimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behatf of the Uttimate
Beneficiaries;

(iv) (c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonabte and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-ctause (i) and (ii) of Rute 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any materiat misstatement.

(v) The Company has not dectared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting the
comptiance with section 123 of the Act is not appticable.

(vi) The Company has migrated its books of accounts to update version of tatty accounting
software and enable audit trait (edit tog) facitity effective from 'l't Aprit, 2023.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm Registration No.'103523W / W100048

I le,
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Yash

Partn r(!
Membership No. 1'17745

UDIN: 241 1 7745BKBOZG81 96

Ptace: Vadodara
Date: May 30, 2024



HARIBHAKTI E CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph I under 'Report on Other Legal and Regutatory Requirements' section
in the lndependent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of lnnovative Tyres and Tubes
Limited ("the Company") on the Financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024)

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on
the Financiat statements of the Company and taking jnto consideration the information,
exptanations and written representation given to us by the management and the books of account
and other records examined by us in the normat course of audit, we report that:

(i)
(a) (A) The Company has not maintained proper records showing futl particulars, inctuding

quantitative detaits and situation of Property, Ptant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has not maintained proper records showing futl particutars of lntangibte
Assets.

(b) During the year, the Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have not been
physicatty verified by the management. Hence, we are unabte to comment on the
discrepancies if any.

(c) The titte deeds of att the immovabte properties, disctosed in the financiat statements
are hetd in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and lntangibte Assets
during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company as at March 31,
Z0Z4 fot hotding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rutes made thereunder.

(ii ) (a) The management has conducted physicaI verification of inventory during the year. As per
the information made avaitabte to us and exptained to us, there is no material discrepancies
between the physicat inventory and inventory as per books and the physicat inventory has
been accounted in the books of accounts.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capitat limits in excess of five crore
rupees during the year, in aggregate from financiat institution, on the basis of security of
current assets. Therefore, reporting under ctause (ii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
appticabte.

(iii) The Company has not made any investments in, provided any toans or provided advances in
the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to companies, firms, Limited
Liabitity Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingty, reporting under ctause (iii) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(iv ) The Company has not granted any loans, made any investment or provided any guarantees
or security to the parties covered under Section '185 and 1 86 of the Act. Hence the provisions
of sections 1 85 and 186 of the Act is not appticabte on the Company.

(v) ln our opinion, the Company has comptied with the directives issued by Reserve Bank of
lndia, the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rutes made there under with
regard to the acceptance of deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits, Further,
as informed, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law
Tribunat or Reserve Bank of lndia or any Court or any other Tribunat on the Company in
respect of the aforesaid deposits or amounts which are deemed to be de

trarrbhakti & co' LLB chartered Accountants Regn. No. AAc. 3768, a timited tiabirity partnership resistered in rfrom a firm Haribhakti & co, FRN: 103521w)
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(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Centrat Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act and rutes thereunder. We have broadty reviewed such
records and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have
not been made and maintained.

(b) There are no dues with respect to provident fund, emptoyees'state insurance, income
tax, GST, sates tax, service tax, vatue added tax, customs duty, excise duty and cess, which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(ix) (a) After the execution of resotution ptan by the successful resotution appticant as per the
Hon'bte NCLT order, the Company has not defautted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(c) The Company did not obtain any money by way of term loans during the year. Accordingty,
reporting under ctause (ix) (c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary associate or joint venture as defined under
the Act. Hence reporting under clause (ix)(e) and (f) of the Order is not appticabte.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised money by way of initiat pubtic issue offer / further pubtic
offer (inctuding debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, reporting under ctause
(x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not appticabte.

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generatly accepted auditing practices in lndia, and
accordingty to the information and exptanations given to us, we have neither come across
any instance of fraud by the Company nor any fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the yearJ nor have we been informed of any such instance by the

.Y.

management.

f, t(

(vii) (a) The Company is generally detaying but depositing with the appropriate authorities,
undisputed statutory dues inctuding Goods and Services tax (GST), provident fund,
emptoyees' state insurance, income-tax, sates-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, vatue added tax, cess and any other materiat statutory dues appticabte to it, in att
cases during the year. During the yeat 7017-18, sales tax, vatue added tax, service tax and
duty of excise subsumed in GST and are accordingty reported under GST.

(viii) \{e have not come across any transaction which were previously not recorded in the books
of account of the Company that have been surrendered or disctosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 .

(b) The Company has not been dectared witful defautter by any bank or financiat institution
or government or any government authority.

(d) On an overau examination of the Financiat statements of the Company, no funds raised
on short-term basis have, been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential attotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (futly, partiatty or optionalty convertibte) during the year.
Therefore, reporting under ctause (x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not appticable.
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(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been fited with the Central Government
by the auditors of the Company in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule '13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 20'14, during the year or upto the date of this report.

(c) There are no whistte btower comptaints received by the Company during the year and
upto the date of this report.

(xii) ln our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting under ctause (xii)
of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicabte.

(xiii) Att transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties, if any are in
comptiance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the detaits have been
disctosed in the financiaI statements as required by the appticabte accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) ln our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the lnternal Audit Reports of the Company issued titl date, for the
period under audit.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of
lndia Act, 1934. Therefore, reporting under ctause (xvi)(a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the
Order are not appticabte.

(xvii)

(xviii)

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without having a vatid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of lndia
as per the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core lnvestment Company (clc) as defined in Core lnvestment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 ("Directions") by the Reserve Bank of lndia.
Accordingty, reporting under clause (xvi)(c) and (d) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not
appticabte.

The Company has not incurred cash toss during the year. the cash loss incurred by the
Company during the immediately preceding financiat year is Rs 400.05 lacs.

There has no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingty, reporting
under ctause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not appticabte.

(xix) On basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financiaI tiabitities, other information accompanying financiat statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management ptans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which cause us to betieve that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of this audit
report and that the Company is not capable of meeting its tiabitities existing at the date of
batance sheet as and when they fatt due within a period of one year from the batance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viabitity of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that att tiabitities fatting due
within a period of one year from the batance sheet date, witt get discharged by the Company
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(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons

connected with them during the year and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not
appticabte to the Company.

as and when they fatt due.



(xx) The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not appticabte to the Company. Hence, reporting
under ctause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not appticabte.

(xxi) Since the Company is not required to prepare consotidated financial statements, clause 3
(xxi) is not appticab[e.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

Yash

Pa

p No. 117745

UDIN: 241 1 7745BKBOZG8 1 96
Ptace: Vadodara
Date: May 30, 2024
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HARIBHAKTI E CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(h) under 'Report on Other Legat and Regutatory Requirements' section in
our lndependent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of lnnovative Tyres and Tubes Limited
on the Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024]

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of
sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We were engaged to audit the internat financiat controts with reference to financial statements of
lnnovative Tyres and Tubes Limited ("the Company") as of March 31,2024 in conjunction Mth our
audit of the Financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsibte for estabtishing and maintaining internat financiat controts
based on the internat controt with reference to financiat statements criteria estabtished by the
Company considering the essentiat components of internat controt stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of lnternat Financiat Controts Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the lnstitute of
Chartered Accountants of lndia ("lCAl"). These responsibitities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controts that were operating effectivety for ensuring the
orderty and efficient conduct of its business, inctuding adherence to Company's poticies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
compteteness of the accounting records, and the timety preparation of retiabte financia( information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibitity is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controts with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent appticabte to an audit of internal financiat controts,
both issued by the lCAl.

Because of the matter described in Disctaimer of Opinion paragraph betow, we were not abte to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on internal financiat
controts with reference to financial statements of the Company.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internat financiat control with reference to financiat statements is a process designed to
provide reasonabte assurance regarding the retiabitity of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for externaI purposes in accordance with generatty accepted accounting principtes.
A company's internat financiat controt with reference to financiat statements inctudes those poticies
and procedures that (1)pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabte detait, accuratety
and fairty reftect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonabte
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financiat statements in
accordance with generatty accepted accounting principtes, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonabte assurance regarding prevention or time[y detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that coutd have a material effect
on the financiaI statements.
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Disclaimer of Opinion

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not established its internal
financial controts u/ith reference to financiat statements on criteria based on or considering the
essentiat components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by lCAl.

Because of this reason, we are unabte to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis
for our opinion whether the Company had adequate internal financial controts with reference to
financial statements and whether such internal financiat controts were operating effectivety as at
March 31, 2024.

We have considered the disctaimer reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of
audit tests apptied in our audit of the Financial statements of the Company, and the disctaimer does
not affect our opinion on the Financial statements of the Company.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm Registration No. 103523w / w100048

Yash

Partner
Mem p No. 11

UDIN: 241 1 7745BKBOZG81 95

Place: Vadodara
Date: May 30, 2024
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Pa rticu lars Note No
As at 31st

March,2024
As at 3'lst

March,2023

'| ,799.16
(2,771.611

950.00

'1,862.46

1,618.59

0.75

447 .95
I 19.60
181.73

4.27

1,799.16
(6,221.30)

3,800.70

't12.78
2,862.70
1,249.46

4,212.89 3,603.49

3,580.65
24.67

288.97
66.83

9.21
10.96
34.s6

1.08
2.73

'193.22

3,210.09
24.67
10.26

1.08

0.06
10.39

123.65
2.96

49.55

170.77

4,212.89 3,603.49

(1) Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves & Surplus
(c) Share Application Money Pending Allotment

(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Short{erm borrowings
(b) Trade payables

(i) Due to Micro & Small enterprises
(ii) Others

(c) Other current liabilities
(d) Short-term provisions

(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipments and lntengible Assets

(i) Property, Plant & Equipments
(ii) Capital work-in-progress
(iii) lntangible assets

(b) Non-current investments
(c) Deferred Tax Assets
(d) Other Non Current Assets

(2) Current assets
(a) lnventories
(b) Trade receivables
(c) Cash and cash equivalents
(d) Short{erm loans and advances
(e) Other Current Assets

Total

Total

I, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

II. ASSETS

(2) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings
(b) Deferred tax liabilities
(c) Other Long term liabilities
(d) Long term provisions

A
B

F

H

I

c
D

E

INNOVATIVE ryRES & TUBES LTD
CIN: L25112GJ1995PLC088579

REGD. OFFICE: 1201,1202,1203-Gl0C, Halol-389360, P.nchmah.l, Gujsrat, lndla
website: wr^rw.innovativetyres.com Email: investo$@innovativetlres.co.in'feL 02676220627

Balance Sheet

Notes forming Part of the Financial Statements 2A

Munish Chawla
Managing Director
DIN No.06454015

Rs. Lacs

Sharma

As per our report of even date
For Haribhakti & Co LLP.
Charlered Acco
FRNo. 10

t{^-rv+ 7<2,
Robin Chawla

Oirector & CFO
DIN N0.10277507

Yash
Partn
M. No. 117745
Date : 30th May 2024
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INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LTD
CIN: L251 1 2GJl 995PLC086679

REGD. OFFICE: 1201,1202,1203-GIDC, Halol-389350, Panchmahal, Guiarat, lndia
website: www.innovativetyros.com Email: invostors@innovativetyrss.co.in fel| 02676-220621

Statement of Profit and Loss

As per our report of even date
For Haribhakti & Co LLP.
Chartered Accou
F R No. 103

ll_*

Yas
Part

i

ish Chawla
lvlanaging Director
DIN No.06454015

Robin Chawla
Director & CFO

DIN No.10277507

1.1

Shweta Sharma
Company Sacretary

M. No. 1 17745

Note
No

Year ended 31st
March,2024

Year ended 31st
March,2023

V. Total Expenses

Vl. ProfiU(Loss) before Exxtra-ordinary item & Tax

Exceptional item(lncome)

Vll. ProfiU(Loss) before tax

Vlll. Tax expense:
Deferred Tax
Current Tax Expense

lX. ProfiU(Loss) for the period

X. Earning per equity share: (FV Rs. 10/- each)
(Refer item No. 8 of Note Z)
- Basic

- Diluted

S

T

U

W

x

J
z

't,417 .79

820.33

162.44

24.39

2,238.12 186.8 3

1 ,303.57
55.60

(44.68)

123.33
2.',|1

442.41
735.47

100.2 9

154.88

19.83

818.32
5,234.34

2,617 .79 6,327.67

(379.67)

3,826.63

3,446.96

(2.73)

(6,140.83)

(6,140.83)

(846.721
(0.45)

3,449.69 (5,293.65)

19.17
19.',t7

(2s.42)

129.42\

5

0

4 o

s

Date : 30th May 2024

48

c/-

Notes forming Part of the Accounts

Partic u la rs

l. Revenue from operations

ll. Other lncome

lll. Total lncome (l +ll)
lV, Expenses:

Cost of materials, consumed
Purchases of Stock ln Trade
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods
and Work in progress
Employee benefits expense
Financial costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses



INNOVATIVE TYRES & TUBES LTD
CIN: L25l l2cJl995PLC086579

REGD. OFFICE: 1201,1202,1203-clOC, Ha1o1.389350, Panchmahal, Gujarat, lndia
website: www.innovativetyres,com Email: investoB@innovativetyres.co.in Tel: 02676-220621

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 3lst March 2024

As per our report ot sven date
For Haribhakti & Co LLP.
Chartered Accou
F R No. 10352

3
1

Yash
*t

Rs. in Lacs)

Munish Chawla bin Ch a

l\ilanaging Director Director & CFO
DIN No.06454015 DIN No.10277507

H
harma

Pa

M.N 117745

Particu lars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

442.41
(797.111

(3,826.63)

5.01

3,446.96

(4.51)

(0.14)

2.11

(6,140.83)

(7.41)

165.58

3.80

818.32
4,922.45

(288.91)

(56.44)

(8.00)
'14.99

(22.451

(731.90)

575.83
(224.73)

255.17

18.00
(0.02)

42.61

24.29

(238.0e)

(59.44)

1.29

1741.61) 43.80

l7 41.61]. 45.99

(5.60)

4.51 7.41

(1.0s) 7.41

12,182.1't)
1,862.46

9s0.00
(2.111

40.99

628.25 40.99

(114.44) 94.38

29.27

1)

2)

3)

Cash Flow from Oporating Activitiog
Profit before taxation

Adjustment for:
Depreciation

Impairment loss/(gain)

Extra ordinary item- reversalof liabilities
Provision for gratuity

Provision for leave

lnterest Received

Doubtful Debts

Sundry balance write offl(write back)
lnterest and financ€ charges

Operating profit before working capital changes
(lncrease/Docrease in

lnventories

Trade Receivables

Short Term Loans and Advanc€s
Other current assets

Other Non Current Assets
lncreaso/ (Decrease) in

Trade payables

Other cunent liabilities
Short-term/long term provisions

Other Long Term Liabilities

Cash generated from operations
lncome taxes and other taxes (net of refunds)
Net cash from Operating Activities - A
Cash flow from lnvestment Activities
Purchase of fixed assets
lnterest rec€ived
Net cash from lnvesament Activity - B
Cash Flolv from Financing Activiti€si
Nei Proceeding(payment) from Secured borrowings
unsecured loan taken

Proceeds from Share issue & premium from promolers

lnterest and finance charges paid

Net cash from Financlng Acttufies - C
Nel lncrease(decrease) in Cash and cash squivalenls
(A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents as on 'l"tApril, 2023

Cash and cash squivalents as on 3lst Maich 2024 9.21 123.66

u,

t s

.1,

Date : 30th May 2024

(sl

Company Sacretary

I

I\AD,.

Sr. No.

1O1.\d\{



lnnov.Uve Tyr.. A fub6! Ltd

Note! to Flnrnclal Statomont

1,79,91,561 Equily Shares olRs_10/- sach
(Prcvious year 1 ,79,91 ,5€ I oquliy shar€6 of Rs. l0/. 6rcn)

A. Sn6ro C.olt l :

(.)Shrro. authorlz.d :

1,90.00,000 Equity shar$ ot Rs.lol€8ct
(Previous yoar 1,90,00,000 €quity 6hEr€3 6t Rs. t(y- 6ach)

Tor.l

lb) Sh.r€3 l$uod, .ubcrlb.d.nd tully p.ld :

!!.!!.3931 31.03.2023

1,000.00 1,900.00

------l;,8:68---------T;46656-

r,701.,t8 1,79r.16

1,799.16 1,799.16

(c) R6conclllrtion ofthe number ol.harsr outltandlng .t tho b€glnnlng and ettho ond ofthe rsportlng perlod:

No. ol aharet
Authori3ed Equity Share Crpltal
Al lhe b€ginning or lhe year
Closing Balance at ths end ol the yea.

r,90,00,000
i,9o,oo,ooo

19,00,00,000
19,00,00,000

l3!u6d, Subcribed !nd P.ld Up Equity Sharet
Al lho beginning of lhe ysar
Closing Balanc€ 6t lhe end ol the year

1,7t,91,561
1,79,91,561

17,99,15,610
17,99,!5,610

(d)Th6 rlghl!, pr6lerenco3 and reltrlctionl .ll.ched to capilal

The company is having o,rly on€ class olshares iE Equity carrying a nomjnalvalue ol Rs.10/- p€r share.

Every holder of iie equily shar€ of th€ Company is ontlhd lo one vote per sh6rs hsld. All other rilhls. prefererrces and reslrictbns atlacied lo
equily sharos ar6 as p€r provjsiois of Comp3nio3 Acl. 2013,

(e)Sharor ln iho company hold by oach.h.r.holdor holdlng more lh.n 5 porEent.h.ro. rpocilylng
tho numb.rof.hares hold :

(i) Equltysh.rs. 3l.l March 202/t

&!!9rL9! %-9I.!9gI
!!!!9!_!!l!l sEIg!

1 Pradeep R Kothari 10,95,876 5.12
2 Marim Gold Oevelopmenl Llmited 16,37,731 9.10

!l!!!gs!-393!
!!I!]!9I!_9! % or totar

cI.crg!-!g!g $ss!
18,15,676 9.12
16,37,731 9.10

(D Snare3 held by promoteB atths ond of the y€a.
3131M.rci 2021

!&..{!ec!E- ll-e!eE!
9I!r9! !!!4!
15.95.678 912%
6,99,562 3.E9%

23,95,238 13.31%

!s..g!Egc!r,
S!!I!!

16,Ss.676
6,99.562

23,95,23E

%-e!le!!!
4ir9!
9.12rh
3.89%
r3.31%

%.hanoe
durino lho

durino tho vea.

-5 49%

31st [,larch 2024

SNo Name ot Prcmoter
1 Mr PEdeep Kolhan

? Mr. uukosh E ssai

Totrl

KTI

3

4

BA

!

DA



lnnovative Tyrea & Tubes Ltd

Notes to Flnancial Statements

Net Surplus In tho Statsmgnt o, Proritand Loss

Total Rsaerve3 and Surplus

Share Applicatlon Mon€y

Application Money received from Regolution Applicant( T6n on Ten Rubtech Pvt Ltd).

(a) Securities Premium AJc
Ealance as per the last 6nancial statements

(b) R6valuation Reserve
Balance as pertho last financial statements

(c) Surplus / (D6ficit) in the Statement of Prolitand Loss
Balance as per lho last fnancial statements
Add : Amount transfened from Statement of Proft & Loss

Unsecured Loans f rom Financial lnstitutions
Less: Current I\,4aturities

[Jn Socurcd:

Loans from Related Partiea

B, Reserves and Surplus :

Total Term Loans

Total

Total

AB At As At
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

3,625.74 3,525.74
3,625.74 3,62s.74

728.49 728.49

(10,575.53)
3,449.69

(5,281.88)
(5,293.65)

125.84 '10,575.53

(7,125.84) (,10,575.53)

\2,771.61], \6,221.J4)

950.00

950.00

' Refer note no. ,| Q of Notes forming part of the Financial Statements.

C. Lono.term borrowinos :

Secured:

Term Loan From Banks

Term Loan from State Eank of lndia (Loan-1)
Term Loan trom State Bank of lndia (Loan-2)
Covid CECL Loan from State Bank of lndia
Covid GECL Loan from State Bank of lndia
Covid GECL Loan 4 from State Bank ot lnd a

Less: Current l\raturities

Long Term maturities of Finance lease Obligations

Vehlclo Leasq Flnancos
Less: Cunent Maturities

Secured by:
(hypothecation charge on respective Vehicles)

143 53
238 29

25 13

370 14

213 00
(990.09)

Tota!

Total

Total

Total

(1216)

5.84
(5 84)

15.98
(15 98)

1,862.46
1,852.45

1,862.46

I

KTI 4

0



Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Leave benefits

F. Short-term borrowinqs :

From Banks

Working Capital facilities
Export Packing Credit

SBI NCLT Oues Payable*

lOBl Current Account

Current Maturities of Long term borrowings
i) Term Loan from banks
ii) Finance leass obligations(Vehicle Finance)'
ii) Unsecured Loans from NBFC

As At As At
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

0.75

Total 0.75

1,571.15

6.'t 5

5.84
990.09

16.06
12.16

Bank Overdraft
(Secured by Hypothecation of Fixed Deposits of Rs 1000 lakhs of M/s Ten
on Ten Rubtech Pvt Ltd)

35.45

Total 1,618.59 3,800.70

G. Trade Pavable :

For supplies/services
a) Due to Micro & Small enterprises
b) Others

H. Other current liabilities :

(a) Statutory Dues (Liabilities)
- PF, ESl, Prof. Tax & Others
. VAT, CST, GST & CENVAT EtC

- TDS & TCS

(b) (i) Staff payables
(b) (ii) Staff payables CIRP"
(c) (i) Advance from Customers
(c) (ii) Advance from Customers-CIRP'*
(d) Creditors for Capital Goods
(e) Other Current Liabilities
(0 Trade Deposits

112.78
2,862.70

Total 567.55 2,975.48

447 .95

119.60

TKEu 't.73
3.38
1.48

12.47
0.50

16.49

25.77
4.85

,t12.26

0.06
't,72
9.48

21.00

458.35

681.71

sr.gs
27 .98

Totat-181.73'1,249.46

a

'to'tvH

a

s3u ).!

A)

2
t

o
u,
lo

-. Refer item 16 of Note ZA

+

lnnovative Tyres & Tubes Ltd

Notes to Financial Statements

E. Lonq Term Provisions :

2,659.',14

123.24

'As per Hon'able NCLT Order dated 09-08-2023, the total amount payable to linancial creditors is

determined as Rs. 3639.22 Lakhs. Out of which Rs. 2062.23 lakhs were due to be paid by 31-03-2024
and the same has been paid. Now the balance payable is Rs. 1576.99 lakhs (Rs. 1571.15 lakhs+ Rs.

5.84 lakhs) as on 31st March, 2024



lnnovative Tyres & Tubes Ltd

Notes to Financial Statements

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for Leave benefits
Provision for Gratuity benefits
Less: Balance with LIC for Trust fund
Provision for Bonus

Less: Transfer to staff payable in Current Liabilities

Total

4.27

4.27

200.42
(22.24l.

As At
31.03.2023

47.6',1

178.18
35.95

(261.751

3

&

0

?o?yH

o

s

t
l{
an

AI

l. Short-term provisions :

As At
31.03.2024



lnnovatlve Tyre3 A Tubes Ltd

Notes to Finenclal Statements

J, PROPERTY PLANT ANO EQUIPMENTS :

italwlP as on 31st M 2024 Rs- In Lakhs
Outstanding for lollowing periods lrom due date

Mor6 than 3

Proiecl lemporarily suspended 24 67 24 A7

2023 Rs- in Lakhs

2-3 years
MorE than 3

Projecl lemporarily susp€nded 374 20.93 24 67

od to Rs 780 66 lakhs. The balance or Rs. 726 49 lakhs is shown as rcvalualion reserve a.d not used for any d istribdion of profts.

loss claam€d in prevb$ yearg.

The Disclosure as p€r A928 "tmpalnnent ol fu3€t3' is as under:
a) The Amount of hpairmed Loss recognised in slaleni€rn ol Profn a Loss Accourt is Rs 9.23 Lscs.
b) The Amoud of.eversal ol lmpairmern Loss in nalen€ri ol Prof( & Loss Accounl is Rs 806 3zt lakhs

c) The Amounl of impaillrcnl loss recognis€d direclly againn revalualion slrplus during the year is Nil.
d) The Amourn or.eveEal ol impainnern bss recognised dicclly in revalualion surplus durjng lhe year is Nil.
e) Recoverable Amoud of lhe Assel is ils net selling pricing €slimaled based on indeperd€nl valualion repods.

0 lne ctass or Prop€rry. Planr and Eqoipmenl impa'red and (s impaifirenl amounl is sho$/n in above rable. (Nore J)

GROSS ELOCK AT COST OEPRECIAIION NET BLOCK

ASSETS 0r.04.2023 31.01.2024 o'1.o4.2023 31_03.2024 31.0t.2024 !1.03.2023
Ii) TANGIBLE

780 66 780 66 780 66 780.66
'12.u6 61 150 12.048.14 10.050.84 396.75 (799.31) I 648 28 2 399 86 1.995 80

246 22 246 22 201.42 7.03Elecrical lnslallation 201 A2 44 40
272Laboratory Equipmerts 40 89 43 61 27 69 222 923 39 14 13 20

B! ld nq 66019 660 49 311.86 20 94 332 80 327 69 348 63
22 61 22.61 21.24 004 2132 1.24 133

Omc€ Equipmerns 50 43 139 51 A2 45 55 0.54 46 13 569 488
36 77 36 77 16.44 437 20 81 15.96 20 33

Compuler & Periph€rals 24 35 24 35 23.50 0.23 063 085
r3,909.06 5.60 13,914.66 10,5S8.94 432.'t5 (797.11) 10,334.02 3,580.65 3.210.0E

(i.) INTANGIBLE

136 19 13619 125.98 10 22 13619 10 22
't.71 1.71 1.66 005 '1.71 0.05

137.90 137.90 '127.64 10.26Tor.l B 137.90 10.26

24 67
{lli) Caplt l wort-ln-prosress

24 6T 24 6T

TotalC 24.67 24.67 21.67 24.67
GI'AND TOTAL (A+B+C) 14,071.63 560 14,077.23 10,826.62 412.41 797.11 '1o,471,92 3,605.32 3,245.0,|

'14.o45 25 10 22 'lo 22 14,045 25 5.0E4.19 818 32 4.922.45 10.824 96 3,220.31 8,961 06

E-

VAdUDAI]A

T

(A(

o

tq a

a1 E

E

vAo

UB

(7 03)

f-------------_-r----r--



lnnovative Tyres & Tubes Ltd

Notes to Financial Statements

Quoted Equity lnstruments

Unquoted Equity lnstruments

Associate"
7500 (Previous year 7500) equity shares of Rs.1 0l each fully
paid up in Halol lndustries Environment & lnfrastructure Ltd. Halol

Others
140 (Previous year- 140) equity shares of Rs.50/- each fully
paid up in The Halol Mercantile Co Operatlve bank Ltd. Halol

Aggregate book value of unquoted investments
Aggregate book value of quoted investments
Aggregate market value of quoted inveslments

' Refer to item No. 1 ( c) of Note ZA

L. Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Deferred Tax Assets

Total

lncome tax Assets (MAT Credit)
Security Deposit
Balance with Gratuity trust Account with LIC (net of gratuity liability)

Total

N. lnventories
(a) Raw materials
(b) Work-in-progress
(c) Finished goods
(d) Stores, Spares & Consumables

0.26 0.26

0.75 0.75

1.08 1.08

0.82
0.26
0.66

2.73

0.82
0.26
0.20

2.73

125.66
45.11
22.45

125.66
45.11

193.22 170.77

0.06

288.97 0.06

244.29
16.00
28.68

&

Raw Material, work in progress, semi finished goods, stores, spares and packing material valued

Finished Goods valued at Cost or Realisable value, whichever is lower

'IOlVH

a

s3u

aa
l!
@

* Refer item No. 1(D) of Note ZA -Accounting Policies for basis of Valuation
{vaolonm

K. Non-Current lnvestments (At Cost) :

Trade lnvestments :

Others
'1,100 (Previous year- 1,100) equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully
paid up in lndian Overseas Bank.

M. Other Non Current Assets

Total

As At As At
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

0.07 0.07



lnnovative Tyres & Tubes Ltd

Notes to Financial Statements

(a) Over Six months from the due date
Considered good
Considered doubtful
Less : Provision for doubtful debts

(b) Others Considered good
(lncludes Receivable from Related party Rs. 31.90 lakhs)

(a) Cash & Cash equivalents :

(i) Balances with Bank in Current Accounts
(ii) Cash on hand

(b) Other Bank Balance :

- in Deposit Accounts with Bank having Maturity Period
upto 12 months
( Held as Margin Money against bank Guarantee)
- in Deposit Accounts with Bank having Maturity Period
upto 12 months

(a) Advance given to Trade Creditors
(b) Advance Given to Employees

(a) Assets held for Sale
(c) Balance with Government Authorities
(d) Advance Recoverable in cash or in kind
(e) Accrued lncome
(f) lncome Tax assets (net of provisions)

KTI I

As At
31.03.2024

As At
3't.03.2023

10.30
263.26
263.26 10.30

0.0 966.8 3

Total 66.83 Total 10.39

2.s8
1.98

17.93

4.38

101 .34

4.65

Total 9.21 Total 123.65

2.9610.56
0.40

Total 10.96 Total 2.96

17 .78
9.27
2.61
4.90

Total ------32156- Total

8.00
32.79

1.88
2.10
4.78

49.55

g
c.

-/,<E9',
)) 10'lvH

o

s3u

u,o -i

O. Trade Receivables (Unsecured) :

P. Cash & Cash Equivalents :

Q. Short-Term Loans and Advances (Unsecured. considered oood) :

R. Other Current Assets:

./



lnnovative Tyres & Tubes Ltd

Notes to Flnancial Statements

S. Revenue from :

Sale of products
- Oomestic
- Exports

b Other Operatlng Revenues
- Disposal Sales
- Service lncome
- Service lncome (Export)

Revenue from Operations

T. Other lncome :

lnterest lncome
From Banks
From Others

Lease Rental lncome
Reversal of lmpairment Loss'
Sundry Balance written back
Provision no longer required

'Refer sub-note 3 of Note -J

U. Cost of Raw Matgrial Consumed :

lnventory at the beginning of the year
Add : Purchases

Less : lnventory at the end of the year

a

Year Ended
31.03.2024

1,295.03

1,295.03

Year Ended
31.03.2023

'162.44

'162.44

162.44

45.56
70.16
7.05

1.52
2.99

16.80
797.1'l

0.14
1.78

16.00
28.68

122.76

820.33

82033

0.06
1,547.81
1,547 .87

244.29-r;58=7-

55.60

55.60

44.68

24.39

24,39

100.3s

3.49
3.92

16.98

Total

14.52
140.36

100.3s
0.06

too-29

V. Purchase of Stock ln Trade:

Purchase of Finished Goods

Total

W. Chanqe in inventories of finished ooods and work-in-proqress:

lnventory at the end of the year
Work in Process
Finished Goods

lnventory at the beginning of the year

Work in Process
Finished Goods

154.88

t
!o.

101VH

a

uc 3

UJo

154.88

-177iT

Total (44.68)



lnnovative Tyres & Tubes Ltd

Notes to Financial Statements

Z. Other Exoenses:

2.03
0.07-----z7T

32.63
13.83

1.47
0.30

Year Ended
31.03.2024

Year Ended
31.03.2023

X. Emplovee benefits exoense:

Salaries,Wages & Bonus (Refer note below) 114.28 19.35
Retirement benefits 0.53
Contribution to Provid€nt and other funds 8.52 0.48

Total 123.33 19.83
(Note: Salary, Wages & Bonus includes Directors' Remuneration n:s. 2.OO tarrrs 1 ev nsffi

Y. Finance Cost:

lnterest on Working Capital
Other lnterest

Stores, Spares & Consumables
Labour Charges
Repairs and Maintenance

Buildings
Plant & Machinery
Computers
Others
Vehicle Maintenance

Freight and FoMarding Charges
Power & Fuel
Water Charges
Other manufacturing expenses
Business Promotion Expenses
Travelling & Conveyance Expense
Selling & Distribution Expenses
Rates and Taxes
lnsurance
Filing Fees
Licence & Fees
Legal & Professional Fees
Statutory Compliance Expenses
Payment to Auditor

Audit Fees
Tax Audit Fees
Reimbursement of expenses

Allowances for Doubtful debts
Directors' Sitting fees
Sundry balance Written otf
Loss on impairment on assets
Bank Charges
Printing, Stationery, Telephone & Courier Expenses
Advertisement expenses
Office Expenses
Security Expenses
Membership fee & Subscription
Miscellaneous Expenses
Office & Other Expenses

Total

9.52
68.47
0.17

0.tl
0.6s

0.12
37.18

o.22

0.08 0.3078.16
0.06

16.90
482.16
13.87
5.27

52.30

0.72

21.77- 73s"4'r

1.68
0.75
0.62

1'1.45

1.68
1.13

19.31
0.44
6.32

45.54

0.64
7.06

38.05

0.50
2.50

45.75

3.80
4,922.45

8.77

24-94-5,343T

3.00

t.9s

1.55
'165.58

1.04
0.22

18.43
0.15
1.92

o.74
1.74
0.50

16.20
0.32
5.44

to'tvH
at)
u,
ao)

a
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INNOVATIVE TYRES E TUAES LIMITEO

NOTES FORI/IING PART OF T}IE FINAI{CIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENOEO ON 31ST MARCII.2024

NOTE: Z

Not6s tormlng part otAccount3:
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIXG POLICIES:

(A) Aasb ofAccounting:

Financjal sletemonb have b€en preparcd by th6 manag6m6nt ot th€ compsny. The linancial 3latem6nB ar6 prepared as per
hislorical co6t convcnlion and on goine conc€m basis and comply wilh th6 applicable 6ccounting standards spscilied under
seclion 133 ol the Compani€E Act, 2013 road wilh Rules 7 ot the Compani6s(Accounls) Rulss 2014.

(B) Proporty, Plantand Equipment

i) Propeny, Plant and Equipmonts al6 recoded al cosl of acquisiuon / construclion less accumulated depreoation &
impairmenl loss, il any. excepl tor land which hes b6en shown at revalued amount. Cosl compnse3 ofth6 purchaso price and
any atlribulable cos! of bringing the a$els to ils working condition for ils inlended use, butexcluding GST credit availed.

ii) ln resp€d of fixed assets (olher than capilal wo*-in-progr6ss) acquired dsnng lhe year. depreci.0on is charged on e
Slrsighl Linc Basis so 3s lo wlile off th6 cosl ot lhe assels over lho usetul laves. ln respect ot lixed a$6ts ecqutod prior lo
Apal 1, 2014, the carrying amounl as on April 1, 2014 i3 deprecialed over lhe rsmaining useful life. Th6 useful lil6 ot lhe rixed
assels has been adopl3d as pmscnb€d underlhe Companies Acl. 2013.

lC) lnvo3tnentr :

(i) lnveslm€nts are Long-term, unle$ slated olheMise and arc skted at cost exc€pt where iher€ is diminution in value olh6r
lhan lamporary, in which c€se a provasion is made lo the c€raying velu6 to r6cognis6 th6 diminulion.

ii) ln accordance wrth Accounling Stendard - 23'Accounting lor lnvoslments in Associatss in Consolidaied Financial
Slalemenls'. issued by the lnstlute ol Chaderod Accounlanls of lndia, lh6 Company is roquired io furnish Consolidated
Financial Slalemenls alongwlh the eccounb of Ws Halollndustri63 Envionmeht & lnlraslrucluro Ltd. wher€ lhe shareholding
ol lhe company is morelhan 20% as al Balance Sheel dale

(O) lnv.ntori6:
All lnvenlodo8 ar6 valued at losrr of co3l end nol laelisable valu6-

i) R6!, maleriaB, Packing malenaB, Stores and consumable3 6ro valued using Firsl 'iGFirsl Oul melhod. Th6 cosl ol Raw
maleials, sloes and coasumables indudes cosl of purchases Eller adjlrslng for GST, dirocl expcnses and olher cosl
incuned in bdnging the invonlorios to lh6h prosant localjon and condtion.

iD Woft in Prcgress goods has be€n idenlilied as such depeading upon sl€ge ot complelion of ioished goods lechnically
d6t6mined by lh6 m€nagoment. Wort in Progress good3 are valucd al raw malerials cosl as calculaled sbove including
apprcpriato popodbn of @sl ol conveBion lo tho exlem of slage ot progress and cerlified by lhr managemenl.

iii) Finish6d goods ar6 valued al lo/v€r of cosl or nel realisabls value. Finished goods are veluod el cosl ol produclion.
includinq appropriale proporlion of allocable cosl.

ii) Monetary assels and liabilitios rBlel6d lo ioraign cunonc, tramsclhn3 remaining unsatuad el lh6 end of the yesr al6
lrcnslated at ycar end rsl€s.

iii) The dif€rence in translation of monetary €ssets and liabifties and ealized garns and losses on loreign qchange

transactions are recognised in lhe Profi 6nd LossAccount,

(E) R€Yenue hom Operation3:
D Sale ot poducts aro recognised when hsk and r6wad3 ol owneBhip olthe producls are passed on lo th6 cuslornels, which
is generally on dispatch of good3. Sale3 are n6tol Sale3 rotum and Goods 8 Servi€a Tax.

ii) Erport b6nefG avsilable under preval€nt sch€mes ar€ eccounted on enlillemenl basis.
iii) Service lncome is rccognBed on complelion of job work and are shown nel ol claims

v) Scrap is valued al nel R6ali$bleValue

lFl Forelgn Cu rrency Tr.n3actlon. :

i) ForeiEn onenca lran$clions ars Bcordod in the reporting cunsnc). by applying b $e foreign currency amounl lhe
excnange €ts b€lween lh€ ePoding cur.enc-y snd the loroign cur6ncl al lhe dEle ol th€ transaction.
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However, consideing lhe long l6m raslictions imposed by lrs Halol lnduslries Envircnmenl E lnlrastruclure Lld on transler
ol equity shares as wellaslhe rsliction on d6clerctions on dividond, th6 company falls wilhin lhe ax€mplions as stipulated in
lho AS-23. Consequentlylhe Company E not requlred to prepare Consolijaled F;nenciel Slat6menls. Therotore,lhe
Company has not pr€par€d Consolidal€d Financlal Stalement which is in lio6 wilhin AS-23.

t.



(G) Employoe Bonofib;
la) Shonbnn employoe b.nofit
All employ6c Bonefils payablc wholly wilhin tw€tu6 months ol rcndodng lh3 servic€ are da$ili6d e3 3hort term emptoyee
benefts. Bgnefits such as Selad63, wag.s, and shorl tem componssted abs.nc€3 eic, is r€cognis6d in the pedod in which
lhe employcc rendors lho r€lalod s€rvic€,

lb) Po3t Employment Bon.fltal
i. Dofinod Contibution Plan3:

Detrne conlribution plans ale posl employment benef( plans und6r which the company pays fixed contributions Into separslo
enliti* (fund)orto financi€linstilLrlions or slalo menagsd benard sch€mes. Th6 Compgny op€ratss d€tined contdbution plans
perlaining lo Provident Fund, Employeq slalc lnsurance, Ponsion Fund Scheme tor etigibl6 6mploy6€s. The Company
conlrjbutjon lo deined conldbulion plans aro r€cognised in the profi and los3 accounl in lhe tinancialyasr lo lvtich th6y rclaG.

ll. Defingd Benellt Plans:

The graluity liebilities are lunded p8rtly wilh the L e lnsuranco Corporation of tndia with a locoonized tund, which is
adminislercd by lhe trusteos. The Compsny provides tor g€lully laebility payabl6 on retiremenl on lhe basis ol Acluarial
Valualion as al the yea, end and lhe s€mo is chargBd to prof and loss account undd h6ad Emptoyses Cost.
The Company provkjes lor accumulaled l6ave liability payable on reurement on lh6 basis ot Actuanal Valuation as al the year
end and th6 samo is ciarged to profrt and loss accounl und6r h6ad Emptoyees Cost

(H) Borrowlng Co6t:
Bo(owing cosls lhal are atlibutable to lh€ acquisilion or conslruclion of qualilying assets are capitalised as part ol the cost of
such asseG. A qua[rying 6ss6t is one lhsl lEkes n€ccssadly subslantjal p€riod ol lim6 to gsl r€edy for ils intendgd use. All
olher boro /ing cosls are cha.ged to revenuo

(ll Eaming3 p.r 3h.re:
Basic and dilut€d oarnings p€r share sre compulod by dividing lh6 nel protil afinbuGble lo equiry sharsholders forlhe year, by
lhe w€ighted avsrage number of equity shEr63 oulstanding dudng lho year. (hcluding diluled pol6ntial equily shar€s in c€se
or dilulad EPS)

(J) T.ro! on lncome:
i) Provision for taxation is mad6 on th6 basis ol tho sstimsled laxabla incoma for th6 curenl Accounling pedod in eccordance
with provision ol the lncome Tax Acl, 1961 .

ii) The benefn ol credil against lhe paym€nt mada towards MAT for lhe eadier yea€ is avsilabl€ in accodanc6 wilh lh€
provisions of s.ction 1 1 5J (rA) ol income tax 8cl 1 961 over a p€riod of subssqu€nl 1 5 assessmont ysars and ir is Gcognised
lo lhe en6nt of defend lar liabilily in view of lhe c€rtainly involvcd ol ils realisaton against rcv6Bal of delened tax liabilily

iii) ln accodance with Accounling Slandard - 22 Ac.ountng for Ta(es on lncomo', issued by lho lnstilule of Charreied
Accounlants of lndia, the D€terr€d Tax lor liming dfie.ences belween the book profit and tax prof lo.lhe year is accounled
for using th6le.x rales and laws lhal hav€ b€€n anacted or subslantvely enacted as olthe balance 3heet date.

iv) Detered lax assols adsing flom t6mpo6ry llming difforonc€s ar6 r€cognased lo lhg exlenl th6rs is rcasonable c6neinlylhat
the assek wlll be lealized in fulur6. ln silualions, whom lhe company has un absorbed deprocialion and cary lolwad loss€s,
defered lar assels ara r6coonis6d only ir lhere is virlual cerlainty supponed by convincjng evidcnc6. thal th6 sam6 can be
realised agaiffil lulure lar€U6 profits.

(Kl S6gmont R.porting :

There is no 36pa6le repodabl6 primary 369m6nl as per Accounling Standards 17, eB mosl of the oparations are relaled to
only one Scqmeni viz. Tyr63 & Tubes.

{L} lmpalrnent ot Assets :

A Propedy, Planl and Equipmenl B treated e3 impaired wh6n tho carrying cosl of assets exceeds ils recove€ble value, An
lmpaimont Loss is charged to lh6 Proltl and Loss Accounl in lho year in which an assel is idenli,ied as impansd. The
lmpairmgnt Loss recognized in pnor accounling period is reversgd i, there has beon a change in thc cslimale of recoverable

{N) t 30 ot E3umato3
The preps€tion of the linancial slaiemenls Bquires th6 Manegement to make ostmales and assumplions considered in lhe
reported amounB of A$ets and Liabifths (induding Contingonl Liabilili6) as ol lho dale ollh€ linandal stalomonls 6nd the
reporled income and expenses dunng $e rgporlad p€riod. The Mana€emenl betieves thal tha ostjmales used in the
preparation ol the financial statgments ers prudenl and reasonable Fulure osuhs could, howev6r, drffer lrom these
esltmates. Oiflerence betwsen th6 acluel €sull3 end estimales are recognised in lhe period in which lhe resulls are known/

t

a

C4
tu
@

9
/i:

?O]VH
)

cJUII

lM) Provklona, Conting€nt Llablllue. and Conllng.ntA33et :

Provisions er6 recognised onlywhen lherB is a pr€sont obligation es a r€suli ot pssl6vent and when e rcliabl6 estimale olthe
amount ofthc obligation can be made. Provisions are dolemined by discounting lhe expecled fuluro c€sh flows al a pro-lax
rate lhal rellocls cunenl mark6t assessmenls of th6 lime valu6 of money and lho risks specific lo lhe liabillly Conlingenl
liability is disclosed lor (i) Possible obligation3 whici wll be contirmed only by lhs lulur€ evenls not wholly wnhin the conlrol ol
the company or (ii) Present obligalions adsing irom pasl ovonG wh6le it is nol probable lhal an outllow ol resources will be
required to sctle the obligation or e r€lhbl€ $timate ofthe amounl of lhe obligalion can not be made. Contingenl Asse6 a€
not recognis€d in the financial slalomenls.



(P) Le.BeB
Oooratlno to836

Paymenis ar€ recognased as expendilurE in the Stalemenl of Proft end Loss on € slraighlline basis ov6r lho leass term.

Finance Lo.rt
The lower ol lhe lair value ol lhe a$eB and prcsenl valuo of lhe minimum l€as6 renlals is cadlalised as FD(ed Assets wth
cor€sponding amountdisclo$d as leas6liebility- The pinciFl comf,onent in lh€ lras€ renlali! adjusted againsllhe lease
liability and lhe inlerest component b chargod lo Prol5l and Loss Slalem6nl.

(al coRPoRArE tNsoLvENcY RESOLUTTOT{ PROCESS
MATTER LISIED WTH NCLT
An applicalion was llled lor th6 iniliation of Corporate lnsolv6ncy Resoldion Process ('CIRP) under Seclion 9 of lhe
lnsolvency and Bankruptcy Code,20l6 ('lBC')against lnnovalive Tyre3 &Tube3 Limiled ('th6 Companf) belor6lh6 Hon'bl6
NationalCompany Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench ('NCLT'), wnh a pBysrio commeoce tha CIRP. The Hon'ble NCLTvide
its order dalod 28th March 2022 admitted the said applicstion for anili.lbn otCIRP again3llhe Company. Funher, th6 Hon'ble
NCLT gave ordels forlhe appoinlm6nl ofMr. Abhishok Nagori as the lnl6nm Rosolution Prolessional ('lRP') lo perfom allthe
funclions as per lhe IBC and that lho management of lh6 Company 3hall v6sl in lho IRP The NCLT order also provided for a
moratorium wilh offecl from 28th March 2022 lill lhe completion of lhs CIRP under the lBC. or unlil the Hon'bl6 NCLT
approv6 th6 rcsolution plan or pass6s an oder for liquidaton of lhe company, whichav€r is earlier. Furlher, ln lhe ongoing
CIRP of the Corporale Deblor. the Resolutjon Protessjonal (RP) with lho apprcval of Commille€ of Crcdilors (CoC) invited lhe
Erpr6ssion of lnlerasl {EOl) in Form G on 31-10.2022 lrcm lhe Potential Resolulion Applic€nls (PRAS) lo submil th6
Resolution Plan. Theroaflor, lh6 RP has received Resolulion Plans frcm lhe Rssolutjon Applicants. Subsequently, the CoC
has approvod the Resoluton Plan submiti6d by R*olulon Apdacanl in the 12th me€ting held on 31.12.2022 and $e said
Resolu[on Plan has also been submilted to lhe honourable NCLT forapprcval. Funhe., ln lhe ongoing CIRP otlh6 Corporalo
Deblor, lho Resolulion Plan submitied on 31-12-2022 by iJUs Ten on T€n Rubtoch Privale Umiled was approved by Hon ble
NCLT vide order dated 09.08.2023. Accordingly, the Company hss come out irom lhe CorpoEt€ tnsovency Resotution
Prccess (CIRP). Thareforo, es p6rth€ ord€r ol Hon'bls NCLT, a Monitodng Committee has been con3titulod on 16-08-20231o
monilorthe amplementalion ot Appovod r6soldion Plan end prooress lh€rco[.

(Ol Govemmentgranls
Govemmsnt grants a16 recognised:

(a)where there is reasonable assurance lhal lhe company willcomply wilh lhe cond rons attached lothem and
(b)where such benellls have been eam6d byth6 company and uhimale colleclion b rcasonably cenain.

As ps lhe Honourable NCLT'S oder daled glh Augusl, 2023, lhe promote/s shareholding was slaled as 35.06,104
(repr6senling 19.49olo) equty shares snd public shareholding as 1,44,85,457(reprcsenting 80.51%) equity shar6 of Rs. 10/-
each respectively whereas lhe aclual shareholding on gth August 2023, lhe promoleis shareholding was 25.19.104
(epresenling 14.00%)equrty shar6 and public shereholding was 1,54,72,457 (Gpresenting 86.00%) oquity share of Rs. l0l
each respeclively. This discrepancy was b€c€usa one ot lhe promoteB group has sold 9,87,000 (repr*enting 5.49%) du ng
CIRP penod. Because of this discreFncy. the Compeny could not c€ncel promole/s shareholding and reduc€ public
shareholding to 5,10,000 equity shares as per the NCLT Order.

Considedng above s(ualion an lntedoculory Appljcalion has been filed by lhe Chairman ol Monilodng Commitlee appointed
for implemenlaljon oflhe Resolulion Plan, belore Honourable NCLT, Ahmedabad on dated 1sl November, 2023 for modfying
lh6 sliputalion of c€ncellaljon of oquily shara capilal ot prcmoler shar€hold€rs and reduc.tion of equily share capilal of the
public shareholdeG which was rejecled henceagain a sepa.ale inledoculory applicalion was riled on 8lh March 2024. Th€ lasl
hearing was done on 14th May 2024 and the Honourable NCLT, Ahmedabad has reserved lhe order.

Consequent lo above silualion, th€ €llolment of equily shares to the Successlul Resolulion Applicanl could nol be made €nd
lhe share applicalion money received lo tho lune ol Rs. 950.00 lakhs r€mained un allolled for more lhan 60 days an awaiting
order lrom Honosrable NCLT, Ahmed8bad.

Since the RP has taken chaee ol the Company on 28 March. 2022, the E stng direclors are nol liable or responsible lor any
aclions and has no pelsonal kno$,ledge of any such aclions of lhe Company prior lo thek sppointment and hav€ r€lied on the
position of lhe linancial results of the Company as they existed on 17lh Augusl2023 when lhe chsrge was handed ov€r lo the
new board. The naw boad have €li€d upon lh6 explanalion, cladfic€lions, cenrficalions, represenlalions and slalemenls
mad6 by lhe existing officials ol the Company. who werc also part ot lh8 Company dunng the regime of lho RP.

During th€ year ended 31st Maach, 2024, lho now managemenl taken over the possession of the compaoy and slarted
overhauling ol lhe planl and il slaned operalions al reduced capacrty from 19lh Seplember, 2023

As perthe Honourable NCLT'S order, the company is requircd lo make paymenl lo creditors as per implomentalion schedule.
The Company Ms made ths payments duo a3 per lha of implemenialion schedule of lhe Resolulron Plan. Howover, an

amounl o, R3.4.91 hcs Could not be paid to ceditor and employe€! tor wanl of thei. banking delails. This amounl has
remained deposted wth specielaccornt mainlaln€d by lh6 Resolution Applicanl M/s Ten on Ten Pvt Lld,

Duing th€y6er6nd6d 3'lst March,2024 ih€ Company hss reve66d va.ious liabilites (net)of R3. 3,826.53lakhs as p€Ithe
Hon'bt6 NCLT Order .nd shoun es axceplional ilems. Th6 GIo$ liaulife3 wn'tten ofi is R3.3854.40 lacs 8nd Gross exponses

is RB. 27-78 Lakhs.

2 Capllrl ! Olhor Commlbnont
Estimatsd amount d conlrads remaining lo b€ ex6culed on capilal occounB and not povided for (net of advanc€s) R3. NIL (P.evious

year lor Rs. NIL).

Rs. in Lakhs

Sr.No Part,culars 2023-2024 2022-2023

0 Claims of Credilors exceddinq books balances NL

a,a
co2

o a

o
-L

I
&TKs

{

t!

1o1vH

vA@c\qi.

3 conti ent Liabilitios :

s UI



in Laths
202 -2024

ln the Statement of Profit & Loss forths ended March 31 2024
C!rrenl Servic€ Cosl 1.49 219

:mployee Conrributions
Expecled relum on plan assels (1.60)
Nel Actunal (Gains) / Losses (o 1r)

Settlement Cosl

lo.z2l 2.19

Not Asset / (Liabllity) rocoEnised in the Balance Sheot as .t Ma.ch 3'1, 2024
Presontvaluo of NetOefined 8en€tit Obliga0on a! rtMarch 3r,
2021 1.49 2.19
Fair value of plafl a33eB as al March 31,2024 23 94
Funded slatus lsurplus / (Denc{)l 22 45 (2 19)
Net asset / {liabilityl as at March 3'1, 2024 22.45 2.19

Chanso in ObligaUon durinq the Year ended March 31,2024
Prosont value of Doinod Bsnofit Obllgation et bsglnning of tho

204 42 17 61

Cunenl Service Cost 149 219

Selllernent Cost

Emoloyee Conlnbutions
Aclunal (Gains) / Losses (41.19) (6 31)

(159 23) (41 30)

Prosont value of Oeflned Bonofit Obligation atlhs end ot the yoar 1.49 2_19

Change in Asseis dudng lheYearended March 31,2024
Plan ass€ts at the b€ginning of th6 yeaa 224
Assels acquked ln amalEamation in previous year

Expecled return on plan assets 160
Conhbutions by Employer

Adun.lGains / (Losses) 0.11
Plan assels at the end of the year 23 95
Actualreium on plan sssets 1.71

Actu ria I Assumptions
7 20ya 7.20ya

Expecled rale ol relum on plan assels 7 20%
Monany pre reliremenl NA
Morlalily posl rclrrem6nt

5% for all service 5% for al! service

Medical premium inllation NA

Annuel lncremenl in Salary cost sVr 5%

2023-2021 2022-2023
1,295 03 162 44

Ouiside lndia (including oeemed exporls)
Tolal Sales 1,295 03 162 44

5 Mlcro, Smalland Medlum Enterp 86! DevolopmentAct, 2006

As perrequiremenl of Se€lion 22 of Mlcro, Small& Modium Enlelprises Developmenl Acl,2006 following intormation
is disclosed toth6 e(ent identitiable:

2023-2024 2022-2023
a) (j) The Pincipal€mounl remaining unpaid lo any supplieratth6 ehd otaccounling year

(ii) The interesl due on sbove
447 95 112 7A

Totalof (i) 8 (ii) above 447.95
b) Amounl ot inlercst paid bythe buyer in l€.ms ot Seclion 16 ol lhe Act aloog wilh lhB amouol ol lhs paydent

made to lh6 3upplier beyond lh6 appoint6d day dudng each accounting year.

c) The amount of inleresl due and payabletorthe peiod otdelay in making paymenl (which have been paid but
beyond the appoinled d6y dudng the year) bul Mhoui adding the inieresi specilied underthe Ac,t.

d) The amounl ofinlercsl accnred snd remaining unpaid altha €nd of each accounting year

e) The amounl ot turther interesl remsining due and payabb even in lh6 succe€ding years, unulsuch date when
lhe inlercsl dues sbov6 a€ actually paid to th6 small enlemfuo, for lhe purpo36 of disallowance of a
d€ducliblo 6xp€nditure under section 23 ol Acl.

Th6 infomalion hs3 b€en given in respect of such vandors to lh€ onent lhsy could b6 idenlilied as micrc and small enteerises on lhe basis of
inlomEton availauo wilh the company.

6 S.gment Raportino :

a) Primary Sogment
The Compeny has identilied "Tyres & Tub€a' a5 tho only pdmary reporlablc aegment.

bl Second.ry Sogrnent (By Gao0r.phlctl Soomont) 
Rs. tn L.c.
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'\ln view of lhe inter-woven / inler-mired natu€ of busioess and manufadudng facjlity. oth€r secondary

segmental infomatjon is nol asce(ainablo.

4 Oefinsd benefit plan! / compon3ated ab3enc$ -

Gratuitv



7 Dlsclosure as required by lheAccounling Standard -AS-18 relaling lo "Rolabd Parlies Disclosure" issued by
The lnstilule ol Chartered Accou.lanls of lndia ar6 as lollows

Namo of rolatrd paroes .nd d$cdp0oo of roh0on3hlp
Key t$.negsm€nt Petsonnol .nd Rsl.dyo! ofKIP:

Mr. Mukesh G Desaj Non accutive Chaiman (upto 0SO&2023)
Mr.Koyoor Bakshi lndep€nd.nl Director (upto 090&2023)
Ms.KalpanaJoshipura lnd6p6nd€nlDirector(opto0+.0&2023)
Mr. Munish Chawla Managlng Dir€ctor (vr.e.f. 09-08-2023)
Mr. Robin Chawla Dir€clor (w.e.l. 09-08-2023), oircdor& CFO {w.e.f. 1Gl1-2023)
Mr. Ramesh ChanderChawla Dteclor (w.e.l. 09-0&2023)
Mrs. Roshnichawls Dt€do(w.e.f. 1G11-2023)
Mr. Umesh Ved lndep.ndent Diredor (vr.e.l. 1Gl1-2023)
Mrs Jasmin Doshi lndep.ndenl Direclor (w.e.l. 1 Gl 1-2023)
Mrs. Shweta Shama Compliancr Officer & Company Secretary (w.e.f. 10-11-2023)

R€latod Padas:
Associat6 Companies Halol l,rdustn€s Environmenl & lnfEstrucilure Limited

Olher Relaled Parlies Ten on T6n Rublech Pvl Ltd
TOT Tyres Pvl Ltd

in Lakh
Related partios

Sr. No. 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
1

110

179

Ten on Ten Rubl*h Pvl Lld 196.01
22.78

3
T6n on Teo Rublech Pvl ltd 1,089 69

'1,273.64

71375
13 50

a2 31

Sharo Application Mon6y Rocoivod
Ten on Ton Rubl€ch Pvl Lld 950.00

7
Ten on Ten Rublech P!,1 Lid

244 43

ft Ramesh Chander CMwla 140
005
025
025

Outstandinq Balances
Crediloc / Olh€r Payabl6

204Otr4toB Remuoe.aton
038

1.76
Tsn on Ton Rlbleclr Plt Lld 11 70

10
139 30Ten onTen Rlblech Pvl Ltd

1.040 79
668 87

13 50

Ooblors / Other Re.eivablo11

153.48
31.90

12 lnvoslme.t in As$cialo
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8 Earning Per Sharo

As at 31st As at 31st
March,2024 March,2023

Earning por sharo has been computed a! under:

Prcf after Taxalion & belore enra ordinary itsms 3,449 69 (5.293 65)

TotalOrdinary shares
Weghi€d Avs€ge Numberof Equily Shares Oulslanding 1,79,91 561 1.79,91,561
Weiqnled Averaqe Numberof Equily Shares Outst6ndinq (includinq DotenlialEouily 1,79,91.561 1 79.91 551
Earning per Share (Face value Rs 10! per share) (in Rs.)
(Basic) 19.17 129.42)
(Dluled) 19.17 /.29 42)

9 lnformation requir€d under Schsdule lll oftho Comp.nies Acl 2013 as corufi€d by Managem6nt.

10 Ageing of Irade Payable
As on 31st March 2024

Paniculars

Outstandinq forfollowinq p€riods from du6 dat6 of payment

1.2 YoeB 2-3 yoars
More tian 3

o r\rsME 447.95 447.95

iii) Olhers 119 60 119.60
(Lri) Oisputed dues-MSME
(iv) Dispuled dues-Others

567.55 567.55

As on 31st March 2023 Rs. Lakhs
Outstandinq forfollowing periods from du6 dale ol payment

TotatLess than I year 1-2 Yoars 2-3 years
More than 3

(r) MSME 68 65 26.21 17 _92 112.78
(ir)Othels 1,042.45 835.56 984 69 2,862.70
(iii) Dispuled dues-MSME
(iv) Disputed dues-Olhers
Toral 1,'t 11.10 861.77 1,002.61 2,975.48

11 Ageing of Trade Recelvablo

as on 31st March 2024

i.h(I!e (o
n

Partrculars

OuGtanding forfollowing periods from duo date ofpaymont

Total
Less than 6 months 6 months to I yoar 1-2Yeals 2"3 years Moro than 3

(i) Undisputed Trad6 Receivables-
considered good 56 83 66.83

iii) undisputed T€de Receivables-

(iii) Disputed Trade Rec€ivables-
considerod Eood

(iv) Oisputed Trade Receivables-
considercd doubtful
Total 66.83 66.83

Ars

2023-24 2022-23
Value o, rmports calculaled on C.l F. basis mads by lh6 Company dunng th6 year

0) Raw Mal€rials ( including High Sea Purchases)
00 Capitalgoods

a Exp€nd ure in toreign cunency
(i) Foreiqn Tfavelinq expenses
(ii) Testinq Chaees
(iii) Subscdption Chanaes 097
(ir) Foroign Bank Charges 133

c Value ofimponed.aw maledals, spare pans,
Components and Packinq maierials consumed durino the year

Value ofindiqenous raw malerials, spare parts,

Componenls and packing matorjals consumed dudng the yesr

Percenlage lo tolal consu m ption
(a) lmponed raw malenals, spare paris, componenls

and packing materials consumed 0.00% dDtv/0!
(b) lndioenous raw malerials, sDare Dads, comronenls

and packino materials consumed 0.00% ID V/O

D Earninqs in Foreiqn Exchanqe (On accrual basis)
ExDod Sales (On FOB Basis)
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As on 3'lst March 2023
Outstandlng forfollowins poriods from due date ofpayment

Loss than 5 months 1-2 Years 2-3 years
Moro than 3

(i) UndispLJted Trade Receivable+
009 10 30 10.39

(ii) Undisputed T€de Receivables.
165.58 165.58

(Ii) Ospdod T,€do Rec6ivables-
consid6r6d oood

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-
240 30 35 64 93 97.68

Total 0.09 178.28 30.35 64.93 273.65

13 CoQor.t6 Social R6pon.ibility

15

31_03.2024 31.03.2023
Curent Ratio (in times) Current Uabilities 0.17 o.o2 a44 270/a

Debt Equity Ratio (in times) Total Debt Shareholder's Equity /.7210) (0 86) 8288 43%
Debt Service Coverage Ratio {in
times)

Earnin8 available for debt
Debt Service 2 0'l 266 -24.170/a

Return on Equity Ratio {in thes) Net profit
Averate shareholders
equltY {1.55) -'152.06%

lnventory Turnover RaUo (ln

time, Salet 961 127 670.90%
Trade Receivables turnover Ratio

(in times) Sales

AverageTrade
receivables 36 72 1.59 2214.02%

Trade Payable turnover Ratio (in

tim€s)
AveraSe Trade
payebl€ 0.92 003 3406 34%

Net Ca pital Turn over Ratio (in

timet NetSaler WorkinE Capital (0.29) (0 02) 1275 82%
Net Profit Ratio (in percentage) N€tSales 243 (32 59) -10-7.47v,

Return on CapitalEmployed (in

percentaSe)

EarninS before interest &
Capltalemployed (0 11) (s 88) -98.90%

Return on lnvestment (in

percentage)
EarninS before interest &

0.34 442 -24.71%

Note 1: As per NCLT order daled 090&2023 the long tem and sho.l term labilities we,€ reducld by Rs. 3826.63 Lakhs whicn has resuliant inio decrease
ifl curr€nl and non cunent lisbilitios, incr€aso in profii for lhe y6ar, increaso io nel wonh elc. Th6 said gain due to wrliflen back of liablilles has been
considdrcd as exceplional end exlrc odinery il6m. Th6 said accounling impact as per NCLT Odor has lead to draslic changes in the ralios of lhe currenl
year a3 compaG to last yeat.

The Company is consistanlly incurring losses. ln accordance with sectjon 135 of lhe Companies Acl, 2013lhe Company is nol
required to spend expendit!re underlhe Colpolat€ Socjel Responsibalily.

14 To the best ot our knowledge and informatron availabl€ lo us, lh€ company has not enlerd eny lransactjon with companies slruck ofl uodea seclion
248 otCompaniesAcl20l3 or Seclion 560 of Compani6s Act 1956.

16 Amount payable as per Resolutlon Plan
R3.ln Lacs

31.03-2024
Stafl Payable- Salary 1.53

Staff Payable- Bonus 0 91

Sta,f Payable- Leave Sslary 145
Staff Pavable- Graluily 096
Advance trom cu slomersJoreig n 006
TOTAL 4.91

Th€ amount du6, payablo and remsined unpaid as on 31st March 2024 is R3. 4.91 lakhs which could noi b€ pajd for want ol bankjng dal.ils of old

employees and foreign cuslomer. This amoont has been deposiled bylhe Successful Resolulion Applicant i,e, lVUs Tsn on Ten Rublech Pvl Lld into

special accounl opened by it sp€cjally for this purpose only.

s

During the ysar €nded 31sl March. 2024 th6 Company has mad6 reveBalol ampairmenl loss on iis proporty plant and equipmenl ss per AS-28- On
lhe basis olandepend6nt veluatjon,lhe company has rccognised Rs.797.11 lakhs as improvemenl in valu6 ol Property, plant & equipment and
accounled il as revercal ol previously booked impairmenl loss and shown il as olher incom€ in the year ended 31st March 202,1
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l7 The Company is en$g€d ln the bu3ine33 of TfE & Tube3 and lheEfoc. lhoa€ i3 only ono r6po aH6 s€Cmenl in eccordance with lhe Accounling
Standard on Segm.nt Rcpo.ting (ASn D.

18 In the Opinion ol ths Boad. lhe C un6nt Assets / Non Cunenl Assels, Los.s & Advanc€s (induding Export Benofns / lncenllve, Trade Payables arc
:pproxjmately of the value naGd, il realEed / paid in lhe ordinary course ol busness and are subject lo connrmation / reconcilation

19 The third parly paymenls made / received on behaf of lhe Company as w6ll as paymenl lo third padies on behaf ol suppliers by th€ Company are
subjecl lo confimatons trom respectjvo partjes

20 Previous yea/sriguros have been regrouped/ reclassified wh€.ever necessary to conospond wilh lhe cunent yeals classificaiion / disclosure

As p€r our repod of even date
For HarlbhalU A Co LLP.
Charlered \*H--
M 1'17745
Dale 30lh May 2024

Mana9ing Djrecior
DIN No.06454015

Robin Chawla
D reclor & CFO

DIN No 10277507

V
Sharma

Company Sacretary
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